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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd, Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial stalements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate diseretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of City of Pharr, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Pharr, Texas's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pharr, Texas, a3
of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting prineiples generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Pharr, Texas and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
aundit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter — Change of Accounting Principle

As discussed in the notes to the financial statements, in the vear ending September 30, 2024, the City of Pharr,
Texas adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62. Our opinions are
notl modified with respect to this matter.



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The City of Pharr, Texas's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are tree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Pharr, Texas’s ability to continue as a
going concemn for twelve months beyond the financial statement due dale, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter,

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstalement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ot
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis. evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

»  Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
eftectiveness of the City of Pharr, Texas's internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is
expressad.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City of Pharr, Texas’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison and schedule of the City of Pharr, Texas’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability and schedule of City of Pharr, Texas’s pension contributions, and schedule of
the City of Pharr, Texas’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and schedule of City of Pharr, Texas’s
OPEB contributions identified as required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, he
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Phait, Texas's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements Jor
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State of Texas Grant Management Stendards, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements and individual nenmajor fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

Other Reporting Required by Government Anditing Standards

In accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2025,
on our consideration of the City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govermmen! Auditing Standards in considering City of Pharr, Texas™s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

X‘?msff %ﬂﬂfdﬁ'ﬂfdﬁ%;’ o Cat%ﬂ?'-&d‘v?;;ﬂ Jj?ﬁf
Corpus Christi, Texas
September 30, 2025
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City of Pharr
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Pharr, Texas (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Pharr for the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2024,

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City's governmenta| activities exceedead its liabilities and
deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 5161,888,575.

e The assets and deferred outflows of the City's business-type activities exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $154,064,969. The majority of the
business-type activities' net position is unrestricted.

e The General Fund assets exceeded its liabilities by over $11,131,270. The general fund showed an
increase in revenues of 54,864,532, primarily due to an increase in fees & charges and property tax
collections. Sales taxes showed an increase of 2%, and property taxes went up by 10%, but we also
saw an increase of 54,527,236 in operating expenses compared to the previous fiscal year, The
significant increase in expenditures is mainly due to capital equipment purchase and the City's
growing personnel needs.

e During the prior fiscal year 22-23, the Pharr Economic Development Corporation || {(PEDC) came back
as a City blended component unit due to its relationship with the City and to comply with GASE No,
61. During the year, PEDC's assets exceeded its liabilities by 514,668,848 (fund balance), with the
decrease being due to decreased transfers and bond issuance.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three compaonents: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information and the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’'s finances in a manner like a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities and deferred
outflow and intlow of resources, with the difference being reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a helpful indicator of whether the City's financial position is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Aclivities presents information showing how the City's net pasition changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event which gives
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
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City of Pharr
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Government-wide financial staterments distinguish functions of the City that are supported by Laxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other operations that are intended to recover
all ar a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The City's
governmental activities include services provided to the citizens for the City's essential health, safety,
walfare, and administration. Examples include police and fire protection, animal control, streets, parks, and
recreation. Business-type activities of the City include the services provided to the citizens, the cost of
which is recouped by user fees charged for the services. The revenues include water and wastewater
services, bridge toll, emergenicy services, event concession, rents, and golf course fees to all residents and
businesses,

The government-wide financial statements include separate component units for which the city is
financially accountable: the Pharr Economic Development Corporation Il (PEDC), The Greater Pharr
Chamber of Commerce (Chamber), The Tax increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (TIRZ No.1) and Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone No.2 (TIRZ Na.2), the Pharr Housing Finance Corporation (PHFC), and the
Jackson Place Apartments (IPA).

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain contral over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Like other state and local governments, the City uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All the City’s
funds are divided into four categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, blended presented
component units and discretely presented compaonent units.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as gavernmental actlvities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of resources that can be
spent and on balances of resources that can be spent which are available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be helpful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of gavernmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is helpful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’'s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains three major (General, PEDC Il and the Debt Service Fund) and ten nonmajor
governmental funds, Information for the major funds is presented separately in the governmental fund’s
Balance Sheet and the governmental fund’s Statement of Revenues, Fxpenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances. The nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.



City of Pharr
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Funds (Continued)

Individual fund data for each of these nonmajar funds is provided by combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General, Asset Sharing, Community Development,
Hotel/Matel, Parkland Dedication, Paving & Drainage, Grants, General Capital Improvement Projects, and
Debt Service governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for those funds
to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds
The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government wide financial statements, The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and
wastewater operations, its bridge toll, internet services, ambulances services, and golf course operations.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally armong the
City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle repair activities and
health insurance.

Proprietary funds provide more detailed information than government-wide financial statements. The
proprietary funds financial statements offer separate data for water and wastewater operations, bridge
toll, internet services ambulances services, and golf course operations. Conversely, internal service funds
arc combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds’ financial statements.
Individual fund data for the internal service funds are provided by combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the Utility, TeamPharr.net, Pharr Emergency Medical
Services, Bridge, Golf, Health Insurance, and City Garage funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for those funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information essential to a complete understanding of the data provided in the
government wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

The City's progress in funding its obligations to provide pension benefits o its employees can be found at
the end of the notes to the financial statements.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary infermation concerning the result of activities comparing the budget versus actual.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information,



City of Pharr
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Other Information (Continued)

The City's condensed Statement of Net Position along with last fiscal year’s numbers are presentad for
comparison in the table located below:

CGanernmental Activilies Business-Type Activities Totals Incrense
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 (Decrense)
Current Assals 5 6RIG & R4l 0§ 11728 % 12350 % 18543 3 0171 8 {16.28)
Capital Agsers, Net 7069 15839 179,39 173.91 450008 43230 1778
Total Assets 33885 336.R0 296,466 297.21 63551 634 01 1.30
Neferred Ourflows of Resonrces 5.77 13.29 128 2.33 1.05 15,62 (R.57)
Total ussots and delerred
outflows of resources 340.62 150,09 207.94 290,54 id2. 56 H49.63 (7.07)
Cument and (ther Liabilitica 25,63 30.62 2124 15.66 46.87 46,24 0.59
[onp-Tenm Liahilines 156.01 162.30 122 40 131.45 278.40 293,75 {15.35)
Tatal Linhilities 181.63 192,92 143.64 147.11 32527 340.03 _ {14.76)
Deferred Inllows of Resourves 110 482 023 5.73 L34 10.55 (9.21)
Met Invested in Cnpital Assets 12536 11009 75T 41.58 199,74 151 67 4327
Restricted 19,13 45,12 . - 313 45.12 (5.99)
Unres tiieted (2.60) =" {2.86) 7949 105.12 76.98 102,26 f"’ﬁ!‘ﬁ}_
Total Net Position 16:1.89 152,35 154.06 116.70 31595 294008 16.90
Total Liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and nat positlon 5 34462 0§ 35009 % iy & 2005 % 4256 R (4963 § (7.07)

The excess of assets/deferred outflows of resources over liabilities/deferred inflows of resources reported
on the government-wide Statement of Net Position of $315,953,544 as of September 30, 2024. The
increase of §13,353,670 is due to the increase in new capital projects to improve citizens’ quality of life.

By far, the most significant portion of the City's net position reflects its Net Investment in Capital Assets
(e.g., land bulldings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
are still outstanding, which is $125,363,887 for governmental activities and $74,572,297 for business-type
activities. The City uses these capital assels to provide services to citizens; conseguently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the City's investments in its capital assets are reported in Net
of related debt, it sheculd be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A partion of the City’'s net position, 539,131,439, represents resources subject fo external restrictions on
how they may be used. Fiscal year 23 24 shows a negative unrestricted net position of 2,606,751 mainly
due to new investments, changes in net pension liability, the addition of PHFC as a blended component
unit and bringing back PEDC as a blended component unit as a result of the GASB No. 61 guidelines.



City of Pharr
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Activities

The City's condensed changes in net position along with last fiscal year's numbers are presented for
comparison in the table below:

Gove mmental Business-Type Totals Increase
2024 2023 1024 2023 S 2024 ) 2023 J_ﬂ)l.'l‘.rﬂ}
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charpes for Scrvices § 97 5 781 b 4571 $ 5357 % 3547 b1 6138 § (591)
Operatmy Grants and Contnbutnns 1301 16.00 - - 13.01 16,00 (2.0m)
Capital Grants and Coniributions - - - - - -
General Revenues
Property Taxes 3768 W22 - - 37.68 29.22 846
Hales Tax 29,83 30.08 - - 2983 30,08 (0.23)
Other Taxes 395 402 . - 305 1.02 (0.07)
Olher Revenes 1114 2.50 451 5440 15.63 7.90 7.75
Tolal Revenues 10536 89.63 50.22 5887 15558 4R 60 B8R
Expenses:
Cieneral Govermment 2563 16.70 - - 15.65 16.70 R.495
Public safety 36.92 14.30 - - 1692 430 1262
[Highway and Streels 446 871 - - .46 87 (1.25)
Healih and Welfire 373 226 - - 373 2.26 1.47
Culture nnd Recreation 1762 650 - - 17.62 6.59 11.03
Fepnomie development 554 19.01 - - 5.54 19.01 (1347)
Intereat on long-temn debt 6.14 3.36 - - 6,14 5.36 078
Utlity Services . - 18.26 18.70 18.26 18.70 (D.44)
Phain EMS - - 7.82 1445 7.8 1445 (6.63)
TeamPharr.net - - 481 124 4,81 1.4 187
Tofl Brigle - - 6.42 7.54 642 7.54 (1.172}
Ticira del 2ol golf course - - 145 1.60 145 led (0.13)
Total Expenses 100,015 82,93 3876 13.53 138.31 126.46 12:33
Increase in net posiion before
ransters 50 .09 11.46 1544 16.77 221 (5.37)
Contributions 024 . - 1.70 0.24 170 (1.46}
Trinsfiers 7.80 821 (8.02) (B.21) (0.22) - (0.22)
Change in Net Postion 13.35 14,91 344 8§92 16.79 23.84 (7.05)
et Postiion Pegmming 152.36 130.67 146.63 137.22 290.01 273.89 2512
Addpstinents and Restalements (3.81) (.78 392 .50 D.11 1.28 (1.17)
Net Position Ending 5 161.90 5 152.36 § 154 011 $ 146 63 ¥ 31591 5 299.01 5 1690




City of Pharr
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis

Business-Type Activities
There was an increase in revenues for most Business-Type funds, however, an increase in operating
expenses was also reflected. The decrease of 58,079,717 in revenues reflected during this fiscal year is

primarily comprised of EMS receivables, which are expected to be received in a later period.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The City of Pharr's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities amount to $450,079,885.
This investment in capital assets includes water rights, lease assets (GASB No. 87), land, buildings and
system improvements, other improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction
in progress net of depreciation. The total increase in the City's capital assets for the current fiscal year was
517.77 million or 5%.

CGiuvemnmental Activilies Business-Type Tutals Increase
2024 2023 = 024 i 2023 2024 2023 (Decrease)

Leuse Assols 5 204 % 340 % 3o % 3.25 3 5.05 13 665 8 (1.60)
Bubsuriplion Assets pte $ 014 0.06 014 (0.0R)
Walcr Rights - - 175 1.7% 175 7.75 -
[.and 27.04 2242 .80 o690 3393 2932 46]
Building, nnd Sysrem

Iimprovensnls 62,72 G418 12,71 13.48 754 77.66 (2.22)
Other Improvements 3397 50.07 929 10.14 63.25 G621 (2.96)
Machinary nnd Fruipmeni B.04 7.81 916 6.54 17.20 14.3% 2R
Infrastructure 25.34 26.87 100.01 04,24 12535 12111 4.24
Consmichon in progress a1.49 77.50 3058 31.02 122,05 10912 12.93

Total Capital Azsets 5 069 8 25839 § 1795w 5 17392 % 45008 % 43231 8§ 17.77

Additional infarmation on the City’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements in
this report under section-/ll-Detailed Nates on Funds and Component Units Subsection F-Capital Assets.

Long-Term Debt Obligations

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total contractually obligated long-term debt of 5250.85
million, The details of the change in debt from last fiscal year are as indicated:

Govermmental Increase
a4 2023 (Decrease)
Ronds b3 - 3 - 5 -
Certificates of Ohligation 112.23 115.54 (3.32)
Cuapital Equipinent Loans 7.99 438 3.4l
Nuotes Payable 15.54 1894  (340)
Total Long-Term Debt 135.76 139.06 (3.30)
Business-Type Increase
T 2024 T 2023 (Decrease)
Bonds Mayable 108.60 114.15 (3.35)
Capitul Equiptnent Loans _6.54 i 6,13 . D41
Total Loig-Term Debt 115.14 120.28 ; (5.14)
Total Loog-Term [Debt b3 25(.89 b3 259.34 3 {8.45)




City of Pharr
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term debt for governmental activities decreased by $3.32 million due to bonds issued for the
TeamPharr.net project which was funded by the Pharr Economic Development Corporation.

Long-term debt for Business-Type activities decreased by 55.14 million. The decrease in long-term debt is
mainly due to debt repayments made during the fiscal year.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in this report’s Notes to the Financial
Statements under Section /ll-Detailed Nates on Funds and Component Units Subsection G-Long Term
Obligations.

Pension Liability and Other Post-Employment Benefits
The adoption of Staternent No. 68 and Statement No. 75 resulted in the City's reporting of net pensian
and QPEB liabilities, deferred inflows, and deferred outflows of resources for each of these qualified

pension and benefit plans and the recognition expense by the staterment provisions,

Tahle 5 provides the City's key pension statistics related to the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
plan as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024

Description Amount

Net Pension Liahility 24.03
Pension Expense 6.72
OPEB Liability 1.41
OPEB Expense 0.08

Additional information on the City's net pension liability can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements as indicated in the table of contents of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

e The launch of TeamPharr.net, and the new broadband service provided by the City continues to
provide citizens with the opportunity to connect and further improve quality of life. The service
will also expand by extending services the business community.

¢ The continuation of the new infrastructure projects related to the Bridge Expansicn and other
improvements inside the Port of Entry will ultimately streamline the truck/cargo inspection
process, allow for better flow and maximum efficiency, and produce more crossing revenues for
the City of Pharr,

e The City's proposed revenues for the 2024-2025 fiscal year are 583,703,900, which represents
an increase of approximately 59,554,345 from the current year.
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City of Pharr
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Requests for Information

This financial repart is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to City of Pharr, Office of the Finance
Directar, P.O. Box 1729, Pharr, TX 78577.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENTOFNETPOSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2024
Primary  Government

Busingss -
Governmental Typa
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents b 25.751.979 $ 64.348.684 3 90.100.663
Taxes Receivable, Net 2.489.415 - 2.480.415
Accounts Receivahle. Net 11.571.026 0_8RR.762 21.459.788
MNotes Receivable, Net 1.334.713 - 1.334.713
Due from Other Funds 5.898.774 (5.988.115) (89.341)
Due from Others 4.671.230 - 4.671.230
Inventories/Frepaids 23,690 262,787 286.477
Land Available for Sale 3.353.679 - 3.353.679
Permanently Restricted:
Restricted Asset -Cash and Cash Equivalents 11.579.96%9 46.947.209 58,527.178
Restricted Asset - Cash with Fiscal Agent 1.050.923 [.816.000 2.866.923
Restricted Asset - Intergovernmental Receivable 433.363 - 433.365
Capital Asscts:
Land 27.036.155 14.647.338 41.683.493
Infrastructure, Net 25.344.300 100.009,987 125.354.293
Buildines. Met 62.720.392 12.714.977 73.435.369
[mprovements other than Buildings, Net 53.965.855 0.287.222 63.253.077
Machinerv and Equipment, Net 8037354 9.162.928 17,200,282
Right-to-Use T.ease Assets, Net 2,042,352 3.004.101 5.046.453
SBITA Asssts, Net 38.043 - 58.043
Construction in Progress 91.488.733 30,560,142 122.048.8735
Total Asscts 338,851,953 296,662,022 635,513.975
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge for Refunding - 05.162 63.162
Deterred Outflow Related to Pension Plan 5 138885 1.151.184 6.290.069
Deferred Outfloaw Relatad o QOPER 290220 63.013 355.233
Deferrod Resource Related to TESRS 337.083 - 337.083
Total Deferred Outtlows of Resourees 5,766,188 1,281,359 7,047,547
LIABILITIES
Accounts Pavable 7.517.069 5.649.487 13,166,556
Accrued Lisbilities 1.142.107 767.608 1.909.715
Compensated Absences Pavable 41010 598.743 639,753
Due to Others . - .
Accrued Interest Pavable 581.678 750.826 1.332.504
Unearned Revenues 4.071.658 4.881.026 8.952.684
Escrow Accounts 1.685.760 - 1.683.760
Moneurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 10,589.803 8.591.001 19,180,804
Due in More Than One Year:
Debt Due In More Than One Year 134.461.281 117.741.516 252,202,797
Net TMRS/TESRS Pension Liability 19.635.762 4,398,690 24,034,452
Net OPED Liability 1.908.260 257.180 2.163.440
Total Liabilitics 181,634,390 143,636,077 323,270,467
NEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow Related to Pension Plan 630,207 141.175 771.382
Deferred Inflow Related to OFEB 464,969 104,160 569.129
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,095,176 245,335 1,340,511
NET POSITION
Met Investment in Capital Assets and Lease Assets 125.363.887 74.572.297 199,936,184
Restricted:
Restricted for Capital Outlay 1.050,923 - 1.050.923
Restricted for Debt Service 17.224.286 - 17.224.286
Restricted for Economic Development 13.923.662 - 13,923 662
Restricted for Other Purnoses 6.932.568 - 6.932 568
Unrestricted (2.006.751) 79,4&9,672 - 76,882,921
Total Net Position 5 161,888,575 b 134,061,969 $ 315930544

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
12



Component  Linits

Pharr
Chamberof
Commerce

PHFC
Jackson
Apartments

237.630 233.524
: 20,389
89.341 ;
- 114.937

: 2679318

. 1,500,000

: 22.967.270

1611 .
328,582 77,515,438
41,375 43767
: 71,150

: 3.842.783

: 28,643
45.546 i
1.350 801.059
1,051 29.255.166
02,322 34,042,568
) 2679318
236.259 :
. (9.206.448)
236,259 (6,527,130)
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CITY OF PHARR,. TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions
Primary Government:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General Government $ 25634927 § 2207871 8 8.411.937
Public Safety 36,915,756 1,351,501 4.043.1%0
Highways and Streets 4,457,757 £.532,779 555.802
Health and Welfarc 3.729.898 | L !
Culture and Recreation 17,621,115 670,913 .
Economic Development 5,537,733 = -
Interest on Debt 6,130,101 - Z
Other Debt Service 5,766 - g
Total Governmental Activities 100,053.053 9,763,064 13.010,919
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Utility 14,261,867 16,727,722 .
EMS 7,825,183 5,809,416 "
TeamPharr Net 4,818,163 2,330,321 &
Toll Bridge 6.429.512 19,917,871 =
Tierra Del Sol Golf Course 1,426,948 922,517 .
Total Business-Type Activities 18,761,673 45,707,847 i
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT § 138814726 % 554700911 § 13,010,919
Component Units:

Greater Pharr Chamber of Commerce % 303,795 § 71,784 & -
PHFC Jackson Place Apariments 3,732,376 3.912.493 %
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS h) 4,036,171 % 1984277 § -

General Revenues;

Taxes;
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Properly Taxes, Levied for Debt Scrvice
General Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Tax
Other Taxes
Grants and Contributions
Miscellancous Revenue
Investment Earnings
Transfers In (Out)

Total General Revenucs and Translers

Change in Net Position
Wet Position - Beginning
Adjustments and Restatement
et Position - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
14



EXHIBITB-

Net {(Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government s Component Units
Pharr PIIFC
Giovernmental Business-Type Chamber of Jackson
Activilies Activities Total Commerce Apartments
$ (15035119) 5 - % (13035119 5 - % *
(31,521,075} - (31,521,075) - -
1,630,824 . 1.630,824 - -
(3,729.898) - (3,720 89%8) . "
(16,950,202) - (16.950,202) - -
(5,537,733) B {3.537,733) . -
(6.130,101) - (6,130,101) - -
(5.768) 2 (5,766) 8 b
(77,279,070) - (77,279.070) - -
- (1.534,145) (1,534,145) -
- (2.015,767) (2,015,767 - -
- (2.487.842) (2,487,842) - -
- 13,488,339 13,488,359 - -
- (304,431) (504,431) 5 &
- 6,946,174 6,046,174 - -
{77.279.070) 6,946,174 (70,332,896) - -
- - - (232,011 =
f - - L 180,117
- - - (232,011 180,117
28,385,162 - 28,385,162 - -
0,290,632 - 0.290.632 - -
29 R28.389 - 20 878 389 - -
2,616,057 - 2,616,057 - -
1,329,793 - 1,329,793 - -
245,089 - 245,089 - .
10,383.641 1,387,461 11,771,102 5,611 105
754,840 3,122,776 3,877,610 - -
7,799,137 (8,017,537) (218,400) 218,400 -
90,632,740 (3,307,300) 87.125,440 224,011 105
13,353,670 3,438,874 16,792,544 (8.000) 180,222
152,347,674 146,704,793 299,052,467 244,259 (6,707,352)
(3.812,769) 3,921,302 108.533 - =
$ 161,888,575 5 154,004.969 § 315953544 § 236,239 % (6,527,130)

15



CITY OF PIHLARR, TEXAS

BALANCESHLET

GOVLERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2024

General
Fund

Economic
Development

Corp I, Inc.

Debt
Service
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable, Net
Motes Receivable, Net
Due from Other Funds
Nue from Others
Prepaid Items
Land Available for Sale
Restricted Cash with Fiscal Agent
Restricted Assct - Cash with Fiscal Agent
Restricted Asset - [ntergovernmental Receivable

§ (2418,842)
2,480415
6,477,981

7,720,292
4,671.230

1,050,923

$ 5331213
1,391,195
1.277.424

3,353,679
5434241

b 11,929298

(94,568

Total Assets

19,990,999

§ 16787754

5 12,623 866

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable § 3488913 5 1744642 § 1,160
Acerued Liabilities 1,142,107 = 3
Due to Other Funds 121,046 202,771 =
Unearned Revenues - - -
Escrow Accounts 124 802 » -
Total Liabilities 4,876,868 1,947413 L.I60
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxcs 1,096,866 4 344,594
Delerred Revenue - Accounts 872,891 171,493 n
Delerred Revenue - Warrants 2,013,104 # =
Total Delerred Inflows of Resources 3,982,}{61__ 171493 34594
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance:
Land Available lor Sale = 3,353,679 .
Prepaid [lems - - -
Restricted Fund Balance:
Public Salety - - -
Tourism - < s
Parkland s - s
Paving and Drainage - o -
Retirement of Long-Term Debt 1,050,923 4,946,174 12,278,112
Fconomic Development - 6,368,995 -
Unassigned Fund Balance 10,080,347 " =
Total Fund Balances 11131270 14,668,848 12.278.112

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances

B 19,990,999

§ 16787754

$ 12,623,866

The notes o the financial statements arc an integral part ol'this statement.
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EXHIBITC-1

Tatal
Other Crovernmenlal
Funds Funds

§ 11,287236 § 26128907

. 2489415
3,007,282 11,571,026
57,289 1,334,713
177,343 7,897,635

- 4,671,230

10,000 10,000

. 3,353,679
6,145,728 11,579,969
. 1.050,923

433 365 433,365

$ 21118243 § 70,520,862

$ 2280339 5 7.515,054

- 1,142,107
1,670,029 1,993,846
3.990,165 3.990.165
1,560,938 1,685,760
9,501,491 16,326,932

- 1.441.460
2,245,593 3.289977

- 2,015,104
2,245593 6,744,541

- 3,353,679

10,000 10,000
1,173,931 1,173,931
1,184,170 1,184,170

145,946 145,946
1.064,842 1,064,842

- 18275200

7.354,667 13.923.662
(1,762,397) 8,317,950
9371159 47449389

h 21,118243 & 70,520862
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EXHIBITC-2
CITY OF PHARR. TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THEGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCL SHELT TOTHI:
STATEMENTOFNET POSITION
SEPTEMBER30.2024

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 47,449,389

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities, such as (214,554)
sell-insurance and printing, to appropriate functions in other governmental funds. The

assets and liabilities of the internal service [unds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net assets. The net elTect of this consolidation is 1o

Increase (decrease) net position.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 109.808 898
therefore are not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities, T
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore

are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the beginning

balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in the

governmental activities is to increase (decrease) net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 25.149.128
the fund financial statcments, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets t
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The

net effect of including the 2024 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to

increase (decrease) net position.

Included in the noncurrent liahilitics is the recognition of the City's net pension liability (15,127,084)
required by GASB Statement No. 68, a deferred resource outtlow and a deferred
resource inflow. This resulted in a decrease in net position.

Included in the noncurrent liabilities is the recognition of the City's net pension liability (1,322,795)
required by GASB Statement Nao. 75, a deferred resource outflow and a deferred '
resource inflow. This resulted in a decrease in net position.

The 2024 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect (10,175,817)
of the current year's depreciation is 1o decrease net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 6.321,410
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include '
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, climinating interfund transactions,

reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales as an increase in bonds payable, and

recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The

net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net

position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 161,888,575

The notes 1o the [inancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OFPHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANDCHANGESINFUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER 30,2024

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Economic Debt
General Development Service
Fund Corp 11, Ine. Fund
REVENUES:
Tuxes:
Property Taxcs § 25623334 3 - 9.290.632
Gieneral %ales and Use Taxes 22371291 7.457.098 -
Franchise Tax 2.616.057 - -
Other Tuxes 215,109 - -
Licenses und Permits 1.714.026 - .
Intereovernmental Revenue and Grants R2.112 - -
Charpes for Services 5.431.706 -
Charges for Services - Other - 3
Fines (98.839 - -
Investment Earnings 65.553 251.006 262,449
Sponsorships - 245.088 -
Other Revenue 1.338.258 340.225
Total Revenues 00,156,285 8,293,417 9,553,081
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government 18.947.427 -
PPublic Safetv 31.579.167 - -
Highways and Streats 3,556,713 - i
[1eaith and Welfare 3.729.898 - -
Culture and Recreution 9.924.002 - -
Economic Development 2,058,417 5.453.326 -
Debt Service:
Principal on Debt 2.462.033 - 5.547.373
Interast on Debt 255814 2.377.830 3,048,795
(ther Debt Service 5.764 & H
Total Expenditurcs 74,519,259 7.831,156 8,596,168
Excess (Doficicncy) of Revenues Over (Under) (14,362,974) 462,261 056,913
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Bonds 2,446,100 - -
Sale of Real and Personal Property - 435,750 -
Proceeds from Right-to-Use Lenses 225.076 - .
Transfars In 16.151,500 249,346 2,120,600
Tranafers Qut (2.732.201) (2.310,500) (3.692.601)
Other (Uses) - 2 (7.061)
Taotal Other Financing Svurces (Uses) 9.090,473 (1,625,404) (1.579,062)
Net Change in Fund Balances (5,272,499 (1,163,143) (622,149)
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 16,722,608 15,831,991 -
Adjustments and Restatements (318,839) - 12,900,261
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) § 11,131,270 % 14,668,848 12,278,112




EXHIBIT C-3

Taotal
(her CGovernmental
Funds Funds

§  LIB5300 § 3A.099.266

L 20.R28.38%9

# 2.616.057
L.114.684 1.320.793
- 1.714.026

12.928 K08 13010920
- 5.431.706
1.265.834 1.265.834
# 698.839

175.832 754.840

. 245.088

18,348 1 696 R3]

16,688,806 94,691,589

8.210.560 27.157.987
3.470.483 15 (349 630
1.932 825 7.489.540
% 3,729.898
4.976.711 14.900.713
- 7.511.743
1.462.708 0.472.134
113.7609 5.7960.208

. 5766

20,167,056 111,113,639

(3.478,250) (16.422,050)

. 2,446,100
. 435.750

- 225.076

6.638.132 25.175.578
(1.645.500) (17.380.80

. (2.061)

5,012,632 10,898,641
1,534,382 (5,523,409)
20737.038 53,291,637
(12,900,261) (318,839)

$ 9371139 § 47449389
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EXHIBITC-4
CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
RECONCILIATIONOF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENULS, EXPENDITURES,
ANDCHANGES INFUNDBALANCES TOTHE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTUEY BEARENDUEDSEPTEMBLER 30,2024

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (5,523,409)

The cily uses some inlemal service [unds to charge the costs of certain activities (445,782)
primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of these internal service '
funds are reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation is to

increase (decrease) the change in net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 28,643,058
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and

reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net etfect

of removing the 2024 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase

(decrease) the change in net position.

GASRB 68 requires certain plan expenditures to be de-expended and recorded as (1,693,153)
deferred resource oullows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the '

plan caused the change in ending net position. Caontributions made hefore the

measurement date and during the previous fiscal year were expended and recorded as

as reduction in net pension lability, Finally, the proportionate share of pension cxpense

on the plan as a whole has to be recorded.

GASB 75 requires certain plan expenditures Lo be de-expended and recorded as (29,261)
deferred resource oullows. These contributions made aflter the measurement date of the

plan caused the change in ending net position, Contributions made before the

measurement date and during the previous fiscal year were expended and recorded as

as reduction in net pension lability. Finally, the proportionate share of pension expense

on the plan as a whole has Lo be recorded.

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not (10,175,817)
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's e
depreciation is o decrease the change in net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary Lo convert [rom the 2,578,034
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include '
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the

revenue earned [rom the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund (ransactions,

reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities associaled with

maturing long-term debt and interest. ‘The net effect of these reclassifications and

recognilions is o increase (decrease) the change in net position.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 13,353,670

‘T'he notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OFPHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OFNET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNIDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Busmess-Type  Activitics
Utility EMS
ASSETS
Current Asscts:
Cush and Cash Equivalents 1,800,132 § 26,006
Restricted Assets - Current:
Restricted Cash 46,947,209 5
Restricted Cash with Fiscal Agent 166,000 -
Accounts Receivable, Net 2,350,827 2,614,183
Invenlories 104,359 52,7035
Total Current Assels 51,368,527 2,762.894
Nonocurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
T.and 12,043,127 785,224
Infrastructure, Net 80,248,773 =
Buildings, Net 7,473,322 1,967,720
Improvements other than Buildings, Net 7.837.631 40,899
Machinery and Equipment, Net 2,759,255 4,410,971
Right-to-Use Lease Asscts, Net 96,151 2,832,661
Construction in Progress 8,791 268 -
Total Noncurren! Assets 119,249 527 10.037.475
Total Asscts 170,618,054 12,800,369
DEFERRED QOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge for Refunding 63,162 -
Deferred Outfow Related to Pension Plun 407.193 510,927
Deferred Outflow Related 10 OPER 22,996 28.853
Totul Deferred Ouillows of Resources 495351 339,782

The notes (o the linancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enteiprise Funds

{fovernmental

Activilics

Tierra Total Total

Del Sol Enterprise Internal
TeamPharr.Net  Toll Bridge Golf Course Funds Service Funds
5 52,307 § 62,350,227 § 50012 § 64,348,684 § (376,928)
- - 46,947,209 -
5 1,650,000 1,816,000 §
2,986,107 925,399 12,246 9,888,762 .
. 83,303 20,420 262787 13,690
4,038,414 65,010,029 B2.678 123,263,442 (363,238)
- 819,645 999,342 14.647 338 "
. 19,761,214 - 100,009,987 .
. 3,037,013 236,922 12,714,977 278,217
i 752,220 1.156.472 9,787,222 ‘
32,337 1,811,438 148,927 9,162,928 -
= 3,803 71,486 3.004,101 -
. 21,768,874 - 10,560,142 -
32,337 17,454,207 2,613,149 179,386,695 278,217
4,070,751 112,465,136 2.695.R27 302,630,137 (85,021)
. ; . 63,162 #
’ 153,626 79.438 1,151,184 .
= 8.676 4,486 65013 -
P 162,302 81,924 1,281,359 -

EXHIBITD-1 (Cont'd)



CITY OF PHARR, T1EZXAS
STATEMENT QOUNET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBLR 30,2024

Business-Type  Activitics
Utility EMS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities;
Accounts Mayable 656,550 177,608
Compensared Abscnces Payable 404,050 91,224
Due o Other Funds 3,872,354 337.305
Accrued Interest Payable 162,182 -
Unearned Revenues 3,194,174 220
Deht Due Within One Year 5,303,183 380,329
Other Current Liabilities 767,608 -
Total Current Liabilities 14,360,101 986,686
Noncurrent Liahilities:
Debl Due [n More Than One Year 48,942,455 2,614,336
Net Pension Liability 1,555.892 1,052,259
Net OPER Liability 90,969 114,143
Total Noncurrent Liubilities 50,589,316 4,680,738
Total Liahilities 64949417 5,067,124
DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred [nflow Related 1o Pension Plan 49,936 62,657
Deferred Inflow Related o OPER 36,843 46,229
Total Deferred Inllows ol Resources 86,779 108,886
NET POSITION
Met Investment in Capital Assets and Lease Assets 63,069,054 7.042,810
Unrestricted 41,008,155 521,031
Tutal Met Position § 106,077,209 § 7,563,841

The noles to the inancial statements are an integral part of this stalement.
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LEXHIBITD-1

i Crovernmental
- Enterprise Funds

Activities
Tierra lotal Total
Del 5ol Enterprise Internal
TeamPhamNet  Toll Bridge Golf Course Funds Service Funds
300,316 4,502, 458 12.555 5,619,487 2,015
3.050 76,821 23,598 598,743 41,010
1,694 856 55,863 27,737 5,088,115 5,015
- 388.644 - 750,826 o
- 1,634,603 52,027 1,881,026 81,493
= 2,735,483 152,006 8,591,001 -
- - - 767,008 £
1,998,222 9,613,874 267.923 27,226,806 129,533
- 66,131,678 33,047 117,741,516 =
- 387,006 303,533 4,396,690 #
- 34.321 17,747 257,180 =
- 66,773,005 354,327 122,397,386 =
1,998,222 76,386,879 622,250 149,624 192 129,533
- 18,840 9,742 141,173 =
- 13,900 7,188 104,160 £
- 32,740 16,930 245335 =
32,337 - 2,428,096 74,372,297 278,217
2,040,192 36.207 819 (287,325) 79.489.672 (192,771}

2072529 5 36207819 § 2,140,371 § 154.061,969 § (214,554)




CUTY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSLES, AND CHHANGLES IN FUNDNLE T POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNIDS
FORTHE YEARENDLED SELPTEMBIR 30,2024

Busingzs-Type  Aciivities

Utility EMS
OPERATING REVENUES:
Garage Repairs $ -5 -
Claims - -
Water Sales 9,220,733 -
Sewert Sales 7232219 -
Tap Fees 274,771 -
Toll Fees - -
Goll Services - -
Internet Services - -
EMS - 3,809416
Lease Revenue - -
Other Revenue 319,907 580,967
Tolal Operating Revenues 17,047,630 6390383
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services 3998614 3,050,687
Contractual Services 4695813 1,397,123
Supplics 2624377 258,102
Deprecidtion 6,540,723 1,262,121
Self-Insurance Claims - -
Total Operating Expenscs 17,859,527 7,968,033
Operating Income (Loss) (811,897) (1,577652)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Earnings 156,217 4,962
I[nterest Expense - Nonoperating (380,107) (283)
Pension/OPEB Income 177.767 143,137
‘Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (246,123) 147.814
Income (Loss) Belore Transfers {1.058,020) (1.429.838)
Nonoperating Transfers In 1,784,000 1.204 404
‘I'ransfers Qut - -
Change in Nel Position 725,980 {225 ,434)
T'otal Net Position - October | (Beginning) 105,661,979 3,617,543
Adjustments and Restatements (310,750) 4,171,732
Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) $ 106,077,209 § 7,563,841

The notes to the linancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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- Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Agtivities

Tierra Total Total

DeiSol Enterprise Tnlernai
TeamPharr Net  Toll Bridge Golf Course Funds Service Funds
h -5 - 5 - 3 - % 1,100,664
- - - - 6,385478
- - - 0,220,733 -
- - - 7232219 -
- - - 274,771 -
= 19.917.872 - 19.917.872 -
4 s 922 517 922517 -
2,330,322 - - 2,330,322 -
- - = 3800416 -
- 277,323 - 277.523 -
& 168,738 40,123 1,109,935 -
2,330,322 20,364,133 962 840 47,095,308 7.486,142
957,956 1,354,785 786.043 12,148,085 230,645
3,749,577 1,804,563 197.073 11,844,151 790,488
103,737 2283513 178.245 3,392,774 -
6.893 868211 329,905 9.007.853 14,467
- - 5 - 6.896,686
4 818,163 4,255,872 1,491,266 36,392,863 7.932 286
(2.487.841) 16,108.261 (528.426) 10,702,443 (446.144)
459 2,959,710 1,428 3.122.776 -
- (2.240,063) (2.139) (2,822,594) -
- 66,423 66,457 453,784 B
459 786,070 65,716 753,966 -
(2,487382) 16,894,331 {162,680) 11,436,411 (446,144)
799,205 13,797,902 452,154 18.037.665 362
-~ (26.055202) = (26.055.202) -
(1,688,177 4,637,031 (10.526) 3,438,874 (4435,782)
3,760,706 31,573,788 2,090,777 146,704,793 231224
- - 60,320 3.921,302 -

5 2072529 §

36210819 §

2,140,571 § 154,064,969 § (214,554}
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CITY OF PHARR. TIEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
PROPRIETARY IFUNDIS
FORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER 30,2024

Business-Type

Activities

Ulility

EMS

Cash Flows from Operaling Aclivities:
Cash Received from User Charges
Cash Payments (o Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Insurance Claims
Cash Payments for Other Operating Fxpenscs

Met Cash Provided by {(Used for) Operating Activitics

Cash Flows from Mon-Capital Financing Activities;
Operating Transfer In
Operating Transter Out

Wet Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activitics

Cash Flows (rom Capital and Related Fipancing Activities:
Acquisition of Capital Asscts
Prineipal and Interest Puid on Long-Term Debt

Net Cash Provided hy (Used for) Capital and Reluted Financing Activities

Cash Flows [rom [nvesting Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments
Other

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Wet Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cush and Cash Eguivalents at Beginning of Year

Adjusiments and Restaternents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Tncome (Loss) o Net Cash

Provided by (Tsed for) Operating Activilies:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operaling Income
o Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Effcct ol Tnereases and Decreases in Current
Asscts and Liabilities:
Decrease (Inerease) in Receivables
Decrense (Increase) in Invenlories
Deerease (Inerease) in Pension/OPER Qutflows
Ingrease (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Ingrease (Mecrease) in Payroll Deductions
Increase (Deerease) in Interfund Payables

Net Cash Provided by (Uscd for) Operating Activitics

The nales to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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$ 17,047,630

5 6390383

(4,381,387) (5,196,798)
(6,889,710) (2,084,444)
5,776,533 (890.859)
1,784,000 1,204,404
1,784,000 1,204,404
(1,786,345) (4,172.917)
(4.742.107) (364,453)
(6.328.452) (4,537,370)
156,217 4,962
177,767 143,137
333,084 148,099
1,376,065 (4,075,726)
17,858,026 .
(310,750) 4,171,732
§ 48923341 8 06,006

§ (811,897}

$ (1,577.652)

6.540.723 1,262,121
1,329,545 (126,247}
(104.359) (52,701
399,340 414,130
(506.5306) 11,402
(782.113) (560,241)
(278.170) (261.670)

$ 5,786,533

§ (890,859)




Guveinmental

Acliviiies -
Tierra Total Total
el ol Enterprise Internal
TeamPhair. Net Tnll Bridge CGolf Course Funds Service Funds
$ 2330322 % 20364,133 % 962,840 §F 47095308 F  7.486,142
(957.9560) (1.429,489) (856,3412) (12,821,972) -
- £ A - (6,920,450)
(2,131,462) 2,449,843 (377.112) (9,032,883) (1.001,337)
(759,096) 21,384 489 (270.614) 25.240,453 (135,645)
799205 13,797.902 452,154 18,037,665 362
- (26,055,202) - (26,055,202) =
799.205 (12,257,300 452,134 (8.017.537) 362
- (8,012,052) (273.837) (14.245.171)
- (3.635,063) (127,018) (8,868.641)
- (11,647,115 (400,875) (23,113,812 -
459 2,959,710 1.428 3,122,776 -
- 66,423 - 387,327 -
459 3,026,133 1,428 3,510,103 -
40,568 506,207 (217,907) (2.370.793) (435,283)
11,739 63,494,020 141,141 111,504,926 38,355
- - 60,320 3,921,302 -
$ §2,307 5§ 64,000,227 & (16,446) $ 113.055435 £ (376,928)
§ (24R7.841) § 16,108261 §  (528,426) % 10,702445 % (4406,144)
6,893 868,211 329,903 0,007,853 14,467
(54.,748) 737,040 2117 1.887,707 (23,764}
- (R5,303) - (242.364) 27,711
- 140,994 89,865 1,044,331 -
265,318 3,785,819 (29.,625) 3,526,408 (7,915)
- (215,700) (160,164) (1,718.218) -
1,511,252 45,165 25,714 1,042,291 =
$ (739.090) % 21384489 F  (270.614) 5 25250453 §  (435,645)
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General Statement

The City of Pharr, Texas (City) was founded in 1909 and was incorporated as a general law city on February 22,
1916. The City Charter was approved via election and adopted with an effective date of December 1, 1949, The
charter established a City Manager form of government. The municipal government provided by the Charter of the
City of Pharr, Texas shall be known as the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners shall consist of a
Mayor and six (6) Commissioners, and which shall enact local legislation, adopt budgets, determine policies, and
appoint the City Manager, who is held responsible to the Board of Commissioners for the execution of the laws and
the administration of the government of the City.

The general governmental functions include law enforcement, fire, and other public safety activities, streets,
sanitation, public improvements, public charities, parks and recreation, library services, zoning, and general
administrative services. Enterprise funds are used to account for the operations of its utility, EMS, teampharr.net,
bridge, and golf operations.

The accounting and reparting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying basic financial
statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America applicable to state
and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local governments include those principles
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), when applicable.

B. Financial Reporting Entity
The City’s financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Government: City of Pharr, Texas

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations, The criteria for including
organizations as component units with the City's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASE's Codification
of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether:

e The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name).

e The city holds the corporate powers of the organization.

+ The city appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board.

s The city can impose its will on the organization.

e The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City.
s There (s fiscal dependency by the organization on the city.

Blended Component Unit
Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described above and

whose governing body is substantially the same as the City Commission and (1) there is a financial benefit or burden
between the primary government and the component unit (2) city management holds power on the organization.
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

The city has four blended component units, Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1, Tax Increment Reinvestment
Zone No. 2. Information, and Pharr Ecenomic Development Corporation [, Inc, Pharr Housing Finance Corporation,

Tax increment Reinvestment Zone No. 1-On March 2012, the City Commissioners created the Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (TIRZ No. 1). TIRZ is a separate entity with its own EIN; the entity has a total of
four (4) board members, for which three (3) of them are part of the city’s board of commissioners. TIRZ #1
board serves as an advisory board; any projects or changes in the entity will have to be approved by the
city’s commission to be executed. TIRZ#1 has no active employees, so all administrative documentation is
done by the city's staff and approved by city management.

MRZ No. 1 was established to provide a financing mechanism to facilitate a high-quality development in the
Pharr area, created by ordinance No. 0-2011-46 in September 2011, TIRZ No. 1 is set to expire on January
1, 2051, or when all project costs are paid and all debt is retired, whichever comes first. Separate financial
statements issued by TIRZ No. 1 can be obtained by request at the following address: TIRZ No. 1 P.O. Box
1729 Pharr, TX 78577. The city contributes 60% of the agreed contributions every year; payments and
dishursements need to be approved by the city manager.

Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2-On February 2015, the City Commissioners created the Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2 {TIRZ No. 2). TIRZ is a separate entity with its own EIN. The entity, just
like TIRZ # 1, has a total of four (4) members, of which three (3) of them are part of the city’s board
commissioners. The board is only an advisory board. Any changes on the entity will need to be approved
by the city commission, and all documentation is prepared by city staff and approved by the city manager.

TIRZ No. 2 was established to provide a financing mechanism to facilitate a high-guality development in
the Pharr area, created by ordinance No. 0 2015-52 in November 2015 TIRZ No. 2 is set to expire on January
1, 2035, or the date when all project costs are paid and all debt is retired, whichever comes first. Separate
financial staterments issued by TIRZ No. 2 can be obtained by request at the following address: TIRZ No. 2
P.O. Box 1729 Pharr, TX 78577. The city contributes 60% of the agreed contributions every year. Also,
payments and disbursements need to be approved by the city manager.

Pharr Economic Development Corporation (I, Inc. — (PEDC) is a nonprofit development corporation
organized for the purpose of promoting the general economic welfare of the city. The component unit may
offer incentives to local businesses for the enhancement of the community. While PEDC does not provide
services directly to the city, all activities benefit the economic growth bringing more funding and economic
resources to the city.

Sales taxes are collected under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979 for these purposes.
Voted by the citizens of Pharr on Novemnber 4, 2008, and ratified by the City Commission on November 10,
2008, via ordinance O 2008-49, the PEDC 4a was dissolved, and the PEDC was authorized to receive the sales
tax revenue, which is its main revenue source. PEDC is consider a blended component unit due to its
relationship with the primary government, PEDC board members can not add or remove a board member
without city commission approval, also, all policies and program administration shall be submitted for city
commission approval and PEDC board shall administer said programs accordingly. Recently PEDC and the city
joined forces to increase the quality of life of the Pharr citizens by investing in broadband infrastructure,
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Financial Reporting Entity- (continued)

PEDC is funding the project while the city manages the construction and services. Separate financial
statements issued by the PEDC can be obtained by request at the following address: PEDC- 1215 South
Cage Blvd. Pharr, TX 78577,

Pharr Housing Finance Carporation- On November 2015, the entity was created to carry out the purposes of
the Texas Housing Finance Corporations Act, Chapter 394, Texas Local Government Cade, which is to provide
financially residential ownership and development to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing for residents
of the City of Pharr, Texas at prices they can afford. The Board of Directors is composed in its entirety of people
who are members of the governing body of the city and whose terms of office shall be fixed by and run
conterminously with their respective terms of office on such governing body of the city.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The component unit column in the government wide financial statements includes the financial data of the city’s
component unit. The unit is reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
city but are included because the primary government is financially accountable and can impose its will on the
organization. This component unit subscribes to the accounting policies and procedures of the primary
government,

The Greater Pharr Chamber of Commerce is a nonprofit corporation created an April 16, 2018, to create an
environment in which Pharr businesses can succeed and thrive and promote economic development by
creating and promating cormmunity events to increase tourism in tourism the City of Pharr, Texas. The
Chamber has a different Primary government management is responsible for overseeing and approving
financial operations and decisions concerning the organization. Separate financial statements issued by the
Chamber of Commerce can be obtained by request at 1215 South Cage Blvd, Pharr, Texas 78577,

PHFC luckson Place Apartrments The entity was created with the purpose of providing moderate-income
citizens with affordable housing. The apartments started operations in June 2017. All revenues generated
by the Jackson Place Apartments will be used to repay the construction loan from CTL Capital LLC. The city
entered on an agreement with home springs a management company and gave them authority to manage
the entity. PHFC Jackson Place Apartments is considered a Discrete Component Unit based on the criteria
established by GASB Statement No. 61.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These
statements report information on all the non fiduciary financial information for the City and its component units.
The primary government and component units are presented separately within the financial statements with a
focus on the primary government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities (generally
supported by taxes and City general revenue) from business-type activities (generally financed in whole or in part
with fees charged to external customers). The effect of interfund activity, within the governmental and business-
type activities columns, has been removed from these statements.



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements. (continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expensas of a given program are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operations or capital requirements of a program. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reparted instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations about the City's
funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-
exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-
current) are included in the statement of net position and the operating statements present increase (revenues)
and decrease (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned, including unbilled water and sewer services which are accrued, Expenses are recognized at the time the
liability is incurred. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources measurement focus and
are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual, i.e., when they become both measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available” means collectible within
the current period or soon enaough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period, Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are franchise fees, licenses, charges for service, and intergovernmental

revenues, Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the government are also recagnized
as revenue, All other governmental fund revenues are recognized when received.
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
E. Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental Funds

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the
primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges Lo
customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as
non-operating in the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund — reports the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources not reported in other funds.

e PEDC Fund — is a nonprofit industrial development corporation organized for the purpose of
promoling, assisting, and enhancing economic development activities for the City.

# Deht Service Fund — the City accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds in a debt service fund.

Proprietary Funds
The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

s Utility Fund — accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to the residents of the
city.

*  Pharr EMS — accounts for the operations of the emergency medical service provided by the
city.

e TegmPharr.net — accounts for the operations of the internet service provided by the city.

e Bridge Fund — accounts for the operating function of the City's international bridge with
Mexico.

* Golf Fund-accounts for the operating function of the golf course including golf event hall,
greens, pro-shop, and cancessions.

Other Fund Types

Additionally, the City reports internal service funds which are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department to other departments within the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. These services
include fleet management and health insurance. These are proprietary funds that are reported with governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statermnents because most of the activity is for governmental activities.
Direct expenses are not eliminated from the various functional categories, whereas indirect expenses are.
Reimbursements are treated as a reduction of expenses.
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

[ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
F. Assets, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Pasition or Equity

1. Cash and Investments

All cash collections are pooled into commeon pooled accounts to maximize investment opportunities. Each fund
whose monies are deposited in the pooled cash accounts has equity therein, and interest earned on the investment
of these monies is allocated based upon relative equity at month-end. An individual fund's pooled cash is available
upon demand and are “cash equivalents” when preparing these financial statements, All investments are recorded
at fair value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument can be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the priar January 1 for all real and business
personal property located in the City in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which
imposed. On January 31 of each year, a tax line attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties,
and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or past
due and receivable within the current period.

Taxable property includes real property and certain personal property situated in the City. Certain properties of
religious, educational, and charitable organizations, including the federal government and the State of Texas, are
exempt from taxation. Additionally, there are other exemptions in arriving at the total assessed valuation of taxable
property.

The valuations are subject to County-wide revaluation every three years. The effaective tax rate is based upon the
previous year's lotal assessed valuation,

Allowances for uncaollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service funds are based upon historical
experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and
included as part of the allowance for uncollectible; except for tax receivables over 20 years, the City is prohibited
from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas Legislature. The city does
not write off tax receivable greater than 20 years.

3. Inventories
The inventaries are recorded at cost and are accounted for by the consumption methaod. Inventories are reflected
as no spendable fund balance.

4, Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as “due toffrom other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmental wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

L. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Position ar Equity
(Continued)

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. The three main receivables
that contain allowances are property taxes, utility accounts, and warrants. For these categories, the allowance was
based on historical collection rates, the allowances are 2% for property taxes as well as for utility accounts, and
20% for warrants. As of February 2017, the city recommended doing 100% allowance for warrants older than 10
years.

5. Transactions between Funds
Legally authorized transfers are treated as inter-fund transfers and are included in the results of operations of both
Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements
for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical is
not available. Donated assets or donated works of art are valued at their acquisition value on the donated date.
Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. Interest has not
been capitalized during the construction period on property, plant, and equipment.

Assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over three years of useful life. Depreciation has been
calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Buildings 50 Years
Infrastructure 30 Years
Improvements 20 Years
Water and Sewer System 30-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 315 Years

Right-to-use lease assets and SBITA assets are depreciated/amortized using the straight line rmethod over the term
of the respective agreements,

7. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements consists
of unpaid, accumulated annual, and sick leave balances. The City's policy allows employees to accurmnulate unused
sick leave and vacation leave based on the number of years of full-time employment with the City in accordance
with the following chart:

Years of Employment Pro-Rata Accrual Rate per Month
0-19 Years 10 hours (15 days per year)
20 & Qver 13.33 hours {20 days per year)
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City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

I, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.  Assets, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Position or Equity-
(continued)

Nonexempt employees may accumulate no maore than a maximum of two years allotment of vacation leave as set
above, except for civil service nonexempt employees, which can accumulate more than the maximum. Sick leave
may be accrued but will not be paid out to employess that leave before retirement.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the straight-line method as the amount is immaterial against the effective interest method, Gain
or loss on refunding are not netted against the liability but recorded in as deferred outflow/inflow of resources.
lssuance cost is recorded as an expense far the period incurred and is no longer amartized aver the life of the bond
after implementing GASB Staterment No. 65 and Statement No. 63. In the fund financial statements, long-term
liabilities are not recorded in the governmental funds as the payment of the abligations will not be made by current
financial resources. The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt as other financing
resources.

9. Restricted Assets
The proceeds and required reserves of debt issuances are recorded as restricted assets as they are restricted for
debt service and/or capital projects, payments, and/or purchases.

10. Net Position / Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not
available or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.

11. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires the
use of estimates by management. All estimates are made utilizing a conservative philosophy for both revenues and
expenditures,

12. General Fund's Fund Balance Policy

GASB No. 54 establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the constraints imposed on the uses of
those resources; it also provides for two major types of fund balances which are non-spendable and spendable.

Non-spendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to
cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items,
inventories, non-current advances to other funds that are not expected to be collected in the next fiscal year, and
the principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The city has inventories that are considered non-spendable. The City
does not have any material prepaid items or non-spendable funds related to an endowment.



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Pasition or Equity-
(Continued)

In addition to non-spendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances, based

on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

-Restricted: Fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation. All the City's restricted funds are from Special Revenue Funds, whose funds are revenues legally
restricted to expenditures for a particular purpose.

-Committed: Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level of
decision-making authority. The responsibility to commit funds rests with the elected City Commissioners and
Mayor through an approved resolution. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action.

-Assigned: Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a purpose.  The
responsibility to assign funds rests with the City Manager.

-Unassigned: Fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any purpose. This is also where negative
amounts from the other categories of fund halance are recognized.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available,
the City typically first applies restricted resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively defer the use thereof to a future project or replacement equipment acquisition. When an expenditure
is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts
to having been spent first out of committed, the assigned, then unassigned funds.

13. Pensions

For the purpases of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Texas
Municipal Retirerment System (TMRS) and the Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (TESRS) and additions
to/deductions from TMRS's and TESRS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by TMRS and TESRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation
is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

14. Other Postemployment Benefits

The City participates in a defined benefit group-term life insurance plan administered by TMRS known as the
Supplemental Death Renefits Fund (5DBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance
coverage to both current and retired employees. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. Benefit payments
are treated as being equal to the employer’s yearly contributions for retirees. Benefit payments and refunds are
due and payable in accardance with the benefit terms. information about the City’s total OPEB liability, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense is provided by TMRS from reports
prepared by their consulting actuary.
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F. Assets, Deferred Outflow of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Position or Equity-
(Continued)

15. Leases

| eases are defined by GASB No. 87 as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’'s non-
financial assets as specified in the contract for a period in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

e (ity as Lessor
The city should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the cormmencement of the lease
team. The lease receivable should be measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be measured
at the value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term.

e (ity as a lessee
The city recognizes lease llability and an intangible right-to use lease asset at the beginning of a lease. In general,
the lease liability and the right-to-use lease assets are measured based on the present value of the expected
payments during the learning of the lease.

16. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA)

The City implemented GASB 96 for reparting subscription based infarmation technology arrangements (SBITAs)
during this reporting period. A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control over another entity’s IT software
as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. To be accounted for
as a SBITA, it must meet the definition of a “long-term” SBITA provided in GASB 96. The right-to-use SBITA liability
s reported in the government-wide statements. The SBITA liability is calculated as the present value of the
reasonably certain expected payments made over the term of the contract and the interest included in the SBITA
payments is recorded as an expense.

17. Change in Accounting Principle
GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Carrections — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62,
was adopted effective July 1, 2023. The primary objective of this statement is to enhance accounting and financial

reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable,
relevant, consistent, and comparable information form making decisions or assessing accountability.
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fl. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, Budgetary Data

1. Budget Policy and Practice

The City follows the procedures outlined below in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Annual budgets are legally adopted for all City funds with revenue and expense/expenditure activity. The
City Charter states that between sixty (60) and ninety (90) days prior to the end of the fiscal year, the City
Manager is required to submit to the Board of Commissioners a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes the proposed
expenditures/expenses and the proposed method to finance them.

Dates for public hearings, the purpose of which is to obtain taxpayers' comments, are set by the Board of
Commissioners at the time the budget is submitted to that body. The Board of Commissioners may add to,
subtract from, or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the proposed budget.

Any changes must be within the revenue and reserves estimated as available by the City Manager. Prior to
September 25 of each year, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

The appropriste budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City’s department heads may
make transfers of appropriations between/within a department in the same fund with the City Manager's
approval. Transfers of appropriations between funds require the approval of the Board of Commissicners.
The legal level of budgetary control (ie., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is the fund level.

At any time during the fiscal year, the City Manager can reallocate expenditures within a fund without the
approval of the Board of Commissioners. However, any revisions to the budget which increase the total
budgeted expenditures/expenses within any fund must be approved by the Board of Commissioners.

B. Excess of General Fund Expenditures over Appropriations

During the year ended September 30, 2024, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Over

Department Appropriations
Highway and Strests 5 (38,015)
Health and Welfare (3,170,798)
Culture and Recreation (269,002}
Economic Development (1,063,417)
Debt Servie
Frincipal an Debt (1,494,553)
Interest an Debt (134,014)
(5,766)
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Il.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Budget Basis of Accounting

The city prepares its annual budget on a basis (budget basis, which slightly differs from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP Basis). The budget and all transactions are presented In accordance with the City's
method (budget basis) In the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual —General Fund to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences
between budget and GAAP basis are debt service transactions, capital outlay purchases, and the recording of

bond/loan proceeds.

D. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
In accardance with GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures”, violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such

violations:

Violation Action Taken
None Not applicable

E. Deficit Fund Equity/Net Position

At September 30, 2024, the following Funds had deficit fund balances: Grants fund had a deficit fund balance of
($9,596), Covid Relief Fund had a deficit fund balance of ($223,857), General Capital improvements Fund had a
deficit fund balance of ($630,898), Pharr Housing Finance Corp Fund had a deficit fund balance of (5888,046), and
the Health Insurance Fund had a deficit fund balance of (5613,964). The discretely presented component unit
PHFC- Jackson Place Apartments shows a deficit in net position of {$6,527,130).
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[II. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPQONENT UNITS
A. Deposits and Investments

1. Deposits

The city’s funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract and investment
policy pursuant to state statute. The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with its agent approved
pledged securities authorized by Chapter 2257 Collateral for Public Funds of the Government Code in an amount
enough to protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved
securities is waived only to the extent of the dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
insurance.

At September 30, 2074 the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-bearing
savings accounts included in temporary investments) was 5151,494,764 and the bank balance was 5153,710,702.
The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2024 and during the period ended September 30, 2024, were entirely
covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s agent bank in the City’s name.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s depasits may not be returned to it. The
City has a policy of maintaining contact with the trust department of its depository agency to eliminate all custodial
credit risk. As of September 30, 2024, the City’s bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk and was
over-insured and over-collateralized.

In addition, the following is disclosed regarding coverage of combined balances on the date of the highest deposit:

a, Depository: LSNB and Texas Regional Bank
The market value of securities pledged as of the date of the highest combined balance on deposit was

$117,821,913.
¢. The highest combined balances of cash accounts amounted to $126,000,156 and occurred during October
2023.

d. The total amount of FDIC coverage at the time of the largest combined balance was $250,000 during
September 2024.

Restricted cash is defined as the cash balances restricted by the funder for a specific purpose. Total restricted cash
at the end of September 30, 2024, amounted to 561,394,101 with 52,866,923 that is classified as cash with fiscal
agent, which was covered by collateral held in the fiscal agents' trust departments, but not in the city's name. The
balance on Texas Regional Bank under the City’s name but has Texas water development board as escrow agent.
The rest are bond proceeds under the city’s name, The trust department pledges a pool of collateral against all trust
depasits it holds. Bank of America leasing company, U.5. Bank corporation are the city’s fiscal agents.

2.  Investments

The city is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act (“Act”), to adopt,
Implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written, primarily emphasize the safety of
principal and liquidity, address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the guality and capability of
investment management and include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the investing entity’s
funds may be invested, and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the
entity.
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(I, DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS {Continued)
A. Depasits and Investments (Continued)
2. Investments (Continued)

The Act requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area conducted as a part of the
audit of the general purposes financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment practices, management
reports and establish appropriate policies. The city adheres to the requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment
practices of the City are in accordance with local policies.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks:
GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the city was exposed to the following specific
investment risks at year-end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a, Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year-
end, the city was not exposed to interest rate risk. The City's investment policy states that no investment
shall exceed 24 months in maturity. 8y limiting the exposure of its investrments, the city reduces its risk to
the rising or decreasing interest rates.

b, Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty Lo an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
ratings of securities by nationally recognized agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At
year-end, the city was not exposed to credit risk.

c. Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance
and the deposits and investments are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the City’s name. At year end, the city was not exposed to custadial credit risk.

d. Concentration of Credit Risk
This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single jssuer. Atyear
end, the city was exposed to concentration of credit risk, but highly collateralized. With the City’s investment
policy, diversification is stressed.

The city followed its diversification investment guidelines. In prior years, all deposits were placed into LSNB
due to a previous depository agreement given a rate of return of 2%, now with a renewed agreement, rates
are lower, and diversification is even needed more. The City invested in TexPool a portion of its contingency
fund as of May 2016 of last year and has accrued interest since then.

e, Foreign Currency Risk
This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the city
was not expased to foreign currency risk,
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[Il. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)
A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
2. |nvestments (Continued)

The City of Pharr, Texas has no Investment activity as of September 30, 2024,

GASB No. 79 requires additional note disclosure requirements for qualifying external investment pools that
measure all their investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes and for governments that
participate in those pools. TexPool revised its Investment Policy to comply with GASB No. 79 as of August 2017
which includes the use of amortized cost to value portfolio assets and the following guidelines to maintain the

portfolic consistent with a stable net asset value per share:

e The maximum remaining maturity of any security of other investment acquired for the portfolio shall be 397

calendar days or |ess,
s The portfolio should maintain a weighted average maturity of 60 days or |ess.
s The portfolio should maintain a weighted average life of 120 days or less.

B. Receivables

1. Receivables for the City on September 30, 2024, were as follows:

Governinental Activities - Businuss-Type Activities
Total
Business-
Deseription Gieneral Other Total Ulility Fiber EMS Bridge Golf Type
Property Tax $ 28184491 § 2,829,797 % 35.648,288 § B § # 5 - 5 - £ - b} -
Warrants 8,225,119 - 8225119 - - . -
Sales Tax 3,660,606 1,220,202 4,880,808 . . s 2 . -
Accounts 1,185,247 1,356,485 2,541,732 4,244,216 1,988,107 9,599,409 035 3190 12,246 18,767,377
Other : 1,134,712 1,034,712 : : : ; A :
Gross Receivables 15,889 463 6,741,196 22,630,659 4,244,216 3,986,107 9,509 409 025 300 12,246 18,767,377
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectible {7,000,380) (331,666) (7,332,046) {1,893,389) (6,985,226) . (8,878.615)
Total Receivables, Net 5 B 889,083 § 6409510 § 15298613 § 2,350,827 § 3985107 § 24614,183 § 925,399 § 12,246 § 0 BR8762

7. Notes Receivable for the Fharr Economic Development Corporation as of September 30, 2024, were as

follows:
Outstanding Balance Outstanding Balance
Description as of 10/01/2023 Increase Decrease as of 9/30/2024
Reyes Garza, 05/13/2012, for the amount
of $27,022 at an interest rate of 6.00% with
maturity on April 13, 2027, b 1,160,214 5 - S (115,218) 5 1,044,996
Trancasa, 02/15/18, far the amount of
$600,000 at an Interest rate of 6.00% with
maturity on March 15, 2026. 374,393 “ (141,965) 232,428
Tatal Notes Receivable s 1,534,607 5 57,280 § (257,183 & 1,334,712
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I1l. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

B. Receivables (Continued)

3, Leases Receivable for the Business-Type Activities as of September 30, 2024, were as follows:

Accumulated

Description Cost Depreciation Book Value
Cold Storage $ 1,058,726 $ 541,363 $ 517,363
UETA 30,712 {24,863) 5,849
TABC 2,424,536 (2,271,751) 152,785
Total Leases Receivable, Net S 3,513,974 S (1,755,251) S 675,997
C. Payables

Payables for the City on September 30, 2024, were as follows:

Governmental

Activitics Business-Type Activities
Total Busmess-

Deseription Governmenial Utility FMS TeamPharr.Net Bridge Gl Type Total
Vendors £ 7,515,054 § 656550 % 177608 5 00316 § 43502458 5 12,555 § 56494R7 51304541
Salarics & Benetits - 404,050 91,224 3,050 76,821 23,598 598,743 598,743
Accrued Liabilines 1,142,167 162,182 = 3 588644 - 750,826 1,892,933
Customer Deposils - 767,608 - - - - 167,608 T67.608

Total Paynbles $ 8657161 § 1990390 § 268832 5 303366 & S.6792) 5 3615} § 7766664 5 16423825
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)
D. Interfund Balances
The City reports interfund balances between many of its funds. The total of all balances agrees with the sum of

interfund balances presented in the statements of net position/balance sheets for governmental and enterprise
funds. The interfund balances are operational and short-term in nature. Interfund balances on September 30,

2024, consisted of the following:

Genie ral Fund:
CDBRG
Grant Fund
Utiluy
Fiber Optic
PEDC
LMS
City Crarage
Bridge
PHFC
TIRZ #1
TIRZ #2
Goll
Assel Sharing
Chamber
‘I'otal General Fund

PEDC Fund:
General Fund
Total PENC Fund

Asset Sharing Fund:
General Fund
Tolal Asset Shoring Fund

Grants Fund:
Gieneral Fund
Asset Sharing Fund

Total Grants Fund

TIRS MNa. 2
Creneral Fund
Total TIRS No. 2

PIIFC Fund:
General Fund
Total PHFC Fund

CDBG Fund:
General Fund
Total CBG Fund

City Gurage Fund (Internal Service):
General Fund
Totel Ciry Garage Fund:

Total Interfund Balances,
Govermmental Funds

Due From
Oither Funds

Due To
Other Funds

$ 95475
13,388
3872355
1,694 856
202,717
337305
5014
55,463
877467
538001
27737

7,720.292

202771

177.343

202771

177343

13,348
145637

159,025

538001

538,061

877466

877466

05475

03473

5013

b} 7897636

5015

$ 1908519
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fll.  DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

D. Interfund Balances (Continued)

The City’s business-type activities as of September 30, 2024, are as follows;

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Utility Fund:

General Fund i - $ 3.872335
Debt Service - =
Total Utility Fund - 3,872,335

EMS Fund:
General Fund 337,305
Total EMS Fund - 337,305

TeamPharr.Net Fund
CGeneral Fund 1,694 856
Total TeamPharr.Net Fund - 1.694 856

Toll Bridge Fund:
General Fund 55.863
Total Toll Bridge Fund - 55863

Golf Course Fund:
General Fund 27,736
Total Golf Course Fund - 27,736

Total Interfund Balances,
Business-Type Activities $ " § 5988115
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DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the City’s governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2024, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital Asset being deprecisted:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements Other Than Building
Magchinery and Equipment
Right-to-use Lease assets, Equipment
Right-ta-use Subscription Assets

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less aceumulated depreciation for:
Ruildings
Infrastructure
[mprovements Other Than Building
Machinery and Equipment
Right-to-use Lease assets, Equipment
Righl-to-use Subscription Assels

Tatal sccumulated depreciation

Total capial assets being deprociated, net

Governmental activitics capital assets, nel

Beginning Balance Adjustments/ Ending Balance
QOctober 1, 2023 Additions Deletions September 30, 2024
$ 22,419,822 § 4,616,333 § - b 27.036,155
77,502,240 14.960,071 (973.578) 91.488.733
99,922,062 19,576.404 (973,578) 118,524 888
83,590,529 - (694,000) 82,896,529
92,213,993 - - 92,213,993
70,276,622 266,370 973,578 71,516,570
37,697,128 2281810 = 39,978 938
4,980,931 - - 4.980,931
230.114 - - 230.114
288,989,316 2,548,180 279,578 291,817,074
{19,409.801) (1,640.898) 874,563 (20,176,136)
(65,346.479) (1,700,548) 177,340 (66,869,687)
(14,208,704) (3,404.747) 62,736 (17,550.715)
(29,887.092) (1,922,684) (131,808) (31,941,584)
(88,779) (83,292) - (172,071)
(1.581,858) (1.423.648) 66,927 (2,938,579)
(130,522 713) (10.175,817) 1,049,758 {139.648.772)
158,466,603 (7,627.637) 1,329,336 152,168,302
. b 25K, 388,665 5 11,948,767 5 355,758 5 270,693,190
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Il.  DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)
F. Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the City’s business-type activities for the year ended September 30, 2024, was as follows:

Beginning Balance Adjustments/ FEnding Balunce

Oetober 1, 2023 Additions Deletions September 30, 2024
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreeiated;
Land (including Water Rights) b 14,647,338 § - $ - b 14,647,338
Construction in Progress 31,617,800 0.906,445 (10,964,103) 30,560,142
Total Capital nesets, not being depreeiated 46,265,138 0,006,445 (10,964,103) 45,207 480
Cupital Asset being depreciated:
Buildings 34,748,600 - = 34,748,600
[nfrastruciure 160,534,287 10,964,103 - 171,498,390
[mprovements Other Than Building 16,872,497 273,412 - 17,143,909
Muchinery and Equipment 30,008,687 459,005 - 30,467,692
Right-to-use Leuse assets, Equipment 4,254,228 27,149 343,536 4,664,913
Right-to-use Subseription Assets - = - =
Total capital asscts, being depreciated 246,418,298 11.723,669 383,536 258,525,503
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (21.267.148) (754.036) (12,438) {22,033.622)
Tnfrastructure (66.298,893) (4.930,545) (258,965) (71.488,403)
Lmprovements Other Than Building (6,731,446) (1,087,949 (39,290) (7.858,687)
Machinery and Equipment (23,473,380) (1.913,930) 4,082,546 (21,304,764)
Right-lo-use Leasc assets, Equipment (1.006,758) (321,394) (332,660) (1,660,812)
Right-to-use Subscription Asscts . - = -
Total accumulated depreciation (118,777.623) (0,007,854) 3.439.191 (124,346,288)
Total capital nssets being depreciated, nel 127.640,673 2,715,815 3,822,727 134179213

Rusiness=Type activitics capital assets, net

$ 173,905,811 $ 12,622,260

3 (7,141,376)

5

179.386.695
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Il.  DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

F. Capital Assets {Continued)

Capital asset activity for the City’s discretely presented component unit activities for the year ended September 30, 2024,
was as follows:

Beginning Balance Adjustments/ Ending Balance
October 1. 2023 Additions Deletions Seplember 30, 2024
Component Unit - Discretely Presented Chamber
Capital Assel being depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment ) 35.848 $ 4 3 - 35,848

Total capital assets, being depreciated 35,848 - - 35,848
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery and Equipment (26.887) (7,350) i (34,237
Total accumulated depreciation (26,887) (7,350) - (34,237)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,961 (7.350) - 1,611
Camponent Unit, capital asscts, net 5 8,961 b (7.350) 5 - b 1,611

Beginning Balance Adjustments/ Ending Balimce
October 1, 2023 Additions Deletions September 30, 2024
Component Unit - Discretely Presented JPA

Capitul Assets, not being depreciated:

Land b 1.500,000 b - $ - 5 1.300.000
Total Capital assets, not being depreciated 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000

Cupitul Asset being depreciated:

Buildings 26.502,558 - - 26,502,558

Machinery and Equipment 153.683 - B 153,683
Total capital asscts, being depreciated 26.656.241 - - 206.656.241

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (2.944,729) (390,359) - (3,333.288)

Machinery and Equipment (153,683) . - {133,683)
Total accumulated depreciation (3.098.412) (590,559 - (3,688,971)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,557.829 (590,559) - 22,967,270
Compenent Unit. capital assets, net % 25.057.829 3 (590,559) b - $ 24,467.270
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fIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Obligations

Ihe following schedule summarizes the changes in long-term obligations during the year ended September 30,
2024

Raknce Restated Adjustment/ Adjustment/ Balance Due in
10/1/2023 10/1/2023 Tneroase Decrense 930/2024 __ DOne Year
Governme ntal Activities )
Certificates of Obligation b3 115,540,000 8 115,540,000 § = S (3,315,000) 8 112,225,000 5 3,445,500
CDBG Section 108 Note Payable 2,360,000 2,360,000 - {295,000) 2,065,000 295,000
Tax Notes Payable 16,582,497 16,582,497 - (3,107,708) 13,474,789 2,284 8R5
Unamortized Premuom/(Discount) 3,510,367 3,510,367 - {247,785) 3,262,542 247,785
Capital Equipinent Toans/T.eases 4,574,721 4,579,721 6,060,796 (2,650,116) 7.990 401 2,808,307
Accrued Compensated Balances 3,607,589 5,607 589 3,856,308 (5.607.58K) 5,856,309 1,464,077
Accrued Compensated Balinces PEDC 121,377 121,377 177,004 (121,377 177,006 44,251
Mot MPension Liabilicy - TMRS 22,375,945 22375945 - {2,740,183) 19,635,762 -
Met Pension Liabifity - TESRS - . 760,214 - 760,214 -
Orther Post Enoployment Benefits 1,035,705 1,035,705 112,34] - 1,148,046 -
Tatul Governmental Activities 171,713,201 171,713,201 12,966,666 {18.084.737) 166,395,110 10,349,803
Business-Type Activities

Revene Bonds Payable 106,119,000 106,119,000 = (3,692,000} 102,427,000 4,389,000
Refimding Revenue Bonds Payable 8,035,000 ¥.035,000 a (1,%65,000% 6,170,000 1,955,000
Unamoritzcd Premiwn/(Discount) 12,037,579 12,037.579 " {§42,416) 11,195,163 070,605
Financing Arrangsments 4,133,575 6,133,575 1,855417 (1,448,636) i 6,540,356 1,276,396
Accrued Compensated Absences 724,193 724,193 582,271 (707,721) 598,743 -
Net Pengion Liabilicy 5,103,358 5,103 358 = (704,668) 4,398,690 -
Other Post Enployinent Benefis 236,217 236,217 209463 - 257,180 -
Total Business- Tvpe Activities 5 138,388,922 5 138,388,922 5 2,458,651 3 (9,260,441) 5 131,587,132 5 8,591,001
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

The following schedule summarizes the changes in Component Unit Activities’ long-term obligations during the

year ended September 30, 2024:

Balance Balkince Due in
10/1/2023 Incresse Deciease 9/30/2024 One Year
Component Unit Activities
MNotes Payable b 30,819,207 - (762,982) 30,056,225 $ 801,059

Long-term bonded and revenue supported obligations outstanding on September 30, 2024, is comprised of the

following:

Governmenial Activities Series  Original Issuance  Payment Installiments  I[nterest Rates Instullments Muturity T2ate  Current Balunee
Honds Payable
2012 Certificate of Obligation 2012 5 7625000 Annuzl 0.60% - 4.58% 265,000 - 535,000 8/15/2032 § 2,630,000
2016 Certificate of Obligation 2016 14 260,000 Annual 113% - 3.60% 190,.000 - 1,035,000 21572036 11,360,000
2017 Certificate of Obligatian 017 17,240,000 Annual 1.45% - 2.70% 335000 - 2,640,000 /152031 11,800,000
20118 Certiticate of Obligation 2018 16,440,000 Anriizal 2.08% - 3.52% 70,000 - 1,440,000 B/15/2038 13,170,000
2020 Certificats of Obligation 2020 2,300,000 Annual 3.00% 890,000 - 2,625,000 B/15/2039 18,650,000
2021 Certiticate of Obligation 2021 54,615,000 Annual 4.50% - 4.06% 1,645,60G - 3,740,000 8/15/2046 54615000
Tax Notes Pavable
2017 LSNB Tax Note 017 7,300000 Monthly 4.25% 941,000 - 1,167,000 12/1/2024 299,789
2023 LSNB Tux Note 2023 15,115,000 Annual 4,00% 1,940,000 - 2415000 B/15/2030 13175000
Notex Payable
2017 HUD Section 108 Loan 2017 5 5,600,000 Annual 1,28%) - 1.73% 204,00 - 205000 BI1S/2031 % 2,065,000
Business-Type Activities Series  Original lssuance  Payment Instollments  [nierest Rates Tnstallments Maturity Date  Current Balance
Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds - DWSR 2007A 5 13310000 Annual 2,35% - 3.50% 380,000 - 1,075,000 ¥1/2027 8 3135000
Revenue Bonds - NADBANK 20078 10,000,000 Annual 1.75% 385,000 - 65,000 9/1/2027 1,890,000
Revenue Bonds - DWSR 013 8,725,000 Ansiual 0% - 2.71% 255,000 - 400,000 9/1/2042 5.900,000
Revenue Bonds - DWSR 2015 1,762,000 Annual 0,59% - 4, 10%, 72,000 - 117,000 9/1/2035 1,083,000
Revenue Bonds - CWSR 2020A 18,150,000 Annal 0.03% - 0.22% 115,000 - 780,000 D/1/2049 17,390,000
Revenue Bonds - CWSR 202068 13,880.000 Annustl 0.04% - 0,32% 115.000 - 592,000 9/1/2049 12,115,000
Revenue Bonds - CTEIBR 2021 37424000 Annual 0% - SO0 1,395,000 - 2,850,000 #/15/2041 35,030,000
Revenue Bonds - CT&WR 2021 3,157,000 Annunl 0.00% 105,000 - 106,000 A/15/2051 2,839,000
Revenue Bonds - CTEIBR 2021 20,945,000 Annual 2.00% - 2,80% 580,000 - 1,335,000 #/15/20d6 20,945,000
Other Long-Term Obligationy
2017 Refunding Bond 2017 5 18,000,000 Annual 329% - 3.62% 1,220,000 - 2,160,000 R/IS/202R & 6,170,000



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024
IIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)
G. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Long-term bonded and revenue supported obligations outstanding for Component Unit Activities on
September 30, 2024, is comprised of the following:

Component Activities Origival 1ssuance _ Poyment Instathnents  Intorest Rates Installments Marurity Date Current Balance
Nares Puayable
CTL. Cupital 5 34,600,000 Monthly 4.88% 187,504 5420246 8§ 20056215

1. Bonds Payable

Debt service requirements of bonds payable on September 30, 2024, are as follows:

Yeur Ending Governmental Activilies . Business-Type Activities _____ Tolal Requirements
September 30, Principal Inferest Principal Interest Principal __ Interest
2025 5 3,445,000 § 2314516 § 6344000 $ @ 2980801 % 9,780,000 § 5293317
2026 3,375,000 2,180,329 6,587,000 2,735,617 10,162,000 4,915,946
2027 3,725,000 2,032,741 6,829,000 2,478,689 10,554,000 4,511,430
2028 3,890,000 1,878,065 4,156,000 2,194,629 8,046,000 4,072,694
Thereafter 42,975,000 9,913,594 84,681,000 18,569,185 127,656,000 28,482,779
Total b3 57,610,000 % 18319245 & 108597000 & 28958921 § 166,207,000 § 47,278,166

2. Tax Notes Payable

Year Ending Governmental Activities
September 30, Principal ___ Interest

2025 5 2,284 883 $ 529,150
2026 2,065,000 447,600
2027 2,150,000 365,000
2028 2,235,000 279,000

2029-2030 4,740,000 286,200
Total $ 13,474,885 $ 1,906,950
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Capital Equipment Loans Payable

DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

Capital leases payable on September 30, 2024, is comprised of the following issues:

Description

Governmental

Business-Type

Total

52,685,000 lease payable, due in annual
installments of $325,947 including interest,
through January 2026 at 3.69% LED Lighting
Project Citywide,

$979,455 lease payable, due in semi annual
installments of 555,045 including interest,
through May 1, 2026; interest at 2.28%. All
funds used to purchase Fire Truck and
Equipment

52,897,100 lease payable, due in quarterly
installments of $113,435 including interest,
through QOctober 15,2024; interest 2.78%.
All funds used to purchase city vehicles,
public utilities, equipment, bridge office
expansion and golf house renovations.

$955,000 lease payable, due in quarterly
installments of 527,489 including interest,
through October 15, 2027; interest 2.97%.
All funds used forcitywide air conditioning
repairs, fire equipment and irrigation
re pairs for the golf course.

$4,262,100 lease payable, due in monthly
installments of 558,945 including interest,
through February 1, 2031; interest 4.46%.
Al funds used to purchase genral fund
equipment and utility fund equipment.

§138,000 lease payable, due in quarterly
installments of $5,462 including interest,
through October 31, 2024; interest 3.12%.
All funds used to purchase general fund
equipment and golf course equipment.

5 617,509

214,045

17,031

293,208

2,261,690

23,736

54

95,620

46,201

1,679,092

2,901

617,509

214,045

112,651

335,409

3,940,782

26,687



City of Pharr, Texas
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

IIl.  DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

51,788,000 lease payable, due in quarterly
installments of $70,435 including interest,
through November 23, 2030; interest
1.385%. All funds used to purchase general
fund equipment . 892,534 - 892,534

$4,156,000 lease payable, due in quarterly
instaliments of $157,372 including interest,
through November 01, 2028; interest
1.756%. All funds used to purchase general
fund equipment and utility fund
equipment. 995,327 1,481,110 2,476,437

$620,000 lease payable, due in quarterly
installments of $104,907 including interest,
through December 30, 2029; interest 4.20%.
All funds used to purchase general fund
equipment and utility fund equipment. 477,129 - 477,129

Right to Use lease payables, due in
monthly installments at various rates,
including interest, through December 30,
2029; various interest rates. All funds used
to lease general fund equipment and
utility fund equipment. 2,198,142 3,235,433 5,433,575

$ 7,990,401 $ 6,540,356 S 14,530,757

3. Financing Arrangement/Right-to-use leases Payable

Assets purchased with the lease funds are included in the City’s capital assets and depreciation expense. Debt service
reguirements on September 30, 2024, are as foliows:

Yeur Fnding Governmental Activitics Business-Type Activities Total Reyuirements
September 30, Principal Interest Pringipal Interest Principal Interest
2025 $ 2,725.042 $ 234465 §  1,276397 % 221,965 § 4,001,439 % 456,430
2026 1,891,544 147,317 1,067,193 184,975 2,958,736 332,292
2027 032,768 96,002 1,050,404 150,273 1,983,173 246,365
2028 856,137 67,780 1,074,025 115427 1,930,162 183,206
Thereafler 1,584,910 62,461 2,072,336 151,184 3,657,246 213,644
Total $ 7,890,401 § 608,114 § 6540356 % 823824 § 14,530,757 § 1,431,939
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2024
ill. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS {Continued)
G. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

4, Notes Payable

Long-term notes payable outstanding on September 30, 2024, is comprised of the following:

Governmental Activities Serics  Original lssyance  Payment Tostallments  Interest Rutes fstallaents Maturity Pate  Corrent Balance
Nates Pavable
2017 HUD Section 108 Toan 2017 5 5,600,000 Annnal 1.28% - 1.73% 294,000 - 295,000 8/15/2031 5 2,065,000

Debt service requirements of the City’s governmental activities notes payable on September 30, 2024, are as
follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activitics
September 3(), Principal Interest

2025 b 295,000 $ 66,346
2026 295,000 57,466
2027 295,000 48.351
2028 295,000 39,206

2029-2031 885,000 60,062
Total b 2,065,000 $ 271,430

6. Debt Disclosure and Currently Defeased Debt

Nonhe.

7. Accrued Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences (vested sick and vacation |eave) are granted to city employees. In the event of
termination, an employee is paid for all accumulated, unused vacation. The City's accrued compensated absences as
of September 30, 2024, are reflected in the long-term obligations schedule.

8. Arbitrage

The City has issued long-term debt for capital construction projects. These bonds are subject to arbitrage regulations.
Arbitrage regulations call for the return of the difference in interest revenue against interest expense. On September
30, 2024, there was no liability of arbitrage that would have been owed to the federal government.

9. Line of Credit

The City's PEDC has a secured revolving line of credit with Lone Star National Bank up to $5,000,000. The principal is
payable on demand and interest is paid monthly at a rate of 3.75%. The line of credit is collateralized by securities. The
balance due for the line of credit as of September 30, 2024, is $1,179,150.
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lIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

H. Interfund Transfers

The City reports interfund transfers between many of its funds. Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30,
2024, consisted of the following:

Governmental Activities: Transfers In Transfers Qut

General Fund:

Hotel $ 300,000 $ =
General Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000
Capital Projects - 3,690431
Parkland 218,000
Business-Type - 1,466,062
Bridge 9.983,500 -
Debt Service - 326,000
Health Insurance Fund - 362
PEDC 1,650,000 249346
‘T'otal General Fund 16,151,500 9,732,201

Capital Projects Fund:

General Fund 3690431 .
Hotel 231,600 -
Paving & Drainage 827,500 -
[Debt Service 1,908,601 -
Total Capital Projects Fund 6,658,132 -

Debt Service Fund:

General Fund 326,000 -
Bridge 1,284,100 -
Capital Projects - 1,908,601
Business-Type - 1,784,000
PEDC 510,500 -
Total Debt Service Fund 2.120,600 3,692,601
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

H. Interfund Transfers (Continued)
Hotel/Motel Fund

General Fund - 300,000

Capital Projects - 231,600
Total Hotel/Motel Fund - 531,600
Paving & Drainage Fund:

CGeneral Fund - 218,000

Capital Projects - 827,500
Total Paving & Drainage Fund - 1,045,500
PEDC

General Fund 249,346 1,650,000

Debt Service - 510,500

Capital Projects & i
Total PEDC 249346 2,160,500
Governmental - Total Inte rfund
Transfers $ 25,179,578 17,162,402

Component Unit Transfers
Governmental Activities: Transfers In

Transfers Out

General Fund:

Hotel b - $

PEDC -

68,400
150,000

Total General Fund -

Component Unit:

Pharr Chamber of Commerce:
Hotel 68,400
PEDC 150,000

218400

Total Pharr Chamber of Commere: 218400

Total Component Unit

Transfers $ 218400 $

218,400
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES ON FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

H. Interfund Transfers (Continued)

Enterprise Funds:

Business-Type Activities Translers In Transfers Qut

Toll Bridge Fund:

Debt Service b - s 1,284,100

General Fund = 9,983,500

EMS - 989,700

Bridge 13,797 902 13,797,902
Total Toll Bridge Fund 13,797.902 26,035,202
Utility Fund:

General Fund - -

Debt Service 1,784,000 -
Total Utility Fund 1,784,000 -
EMS Fund:

Toll Bridge 089,700

General Fund 214,704 R
Total EMS Fund 1,204,404 -

TeamPharr.Net Fund
General Fund 799,205 -
Total TeamPhart.Net Fund 799205 -

Golf Course Fund:
General Fund 452,154 -
Total Golf Course Fund 452,154 -

Health Insurance Fund
General Fund 362 -
Total Health Insurance Fund: 362 -

Business-Type - Total [nterfund
Transfers b3 18,038,027 5 26,055,202

|. Leases

The international bridge serves as a lessor for three businesses, the first one is TABC. They pay the international bridge
a manthly amount of $550. Also, UETA rents land and makes monthly payments of $12,500 and lastly cold storage with
manthly payments of 57,723,
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V. OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management

The city is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees (workman’s compensatian), and natural disasters. During the fiscal year, the City
obtained general liability coverage at a cost that is economically justifiable by joining with other governmental entities
in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TML). TML is a self-funded poal
operating as common risk management and insurance program. The city pays an annual premium to TML for its above
insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims more than acceptable risk levels; however, each
category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The city continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks
of loss. There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. A copy of TML’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report may be obtained by request at the following address:

Texas Municipal League
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400
Austin, TX /8754-5128
1. Health Care Coverage

As of January 2018, the City transitioned from fully funded to self/partially funded. The health provider is United Health
Care with Lone Star Insurance services as an agent of record. The City now funds its claims monthly through a separate
bank account managed by the agent. The City pays 100% of the employees’ insurance cost and 50% of the employee's
dependent’s insurance cost with the following plans:

Manthly Cost to Monthly Cost Total Monthly

Coverage Type Employee to City Cost
Employze Only - 150 150
Employee and Spouse 206 150 356
Employee and Children 189 150 339
Employee and Family 408 150 558

Monthly Costto Meonthly Cost Tatal Monthly

Coverage Type Employee to City Cost
Employee Only 17 150 167
Employee and Spouse 240 150 389
Employee and Children 221 150 3n
Employee and Family A58 150 GO&

For mare detailed information about United HealthCare please contact:

United Healthcare
2000 West Loop South, Suite 500
Houston, TX 77027
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

2. Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits
The City provides certain health care and life insurance benefits, under City ordinance, for:

A. A ratired person and their dependents covered under the City of Pharr, Texas's health insurance plan, prior to
January 1, 2009, shall be entitled to continued coverage at the municipality’s expense nat to exceed $275 per
month for the retiree, and fifty percent of the cost of coverage for the dependent or 5225 whichever is |ess,
When a retiree reaches the age of 65, the municipality will no longer pay for the retiree’s and dependent’s
health insurance. The municipality will anly pay for the cost of the retiree’s Medicare Advantage Plan coverage.

B. Any person employed with the City of Pharr, Texas, prior to January 1, 2009, that has been employed for not
less than twenty (20) years with any municipality in the State of Texas that participates in the Texas Municipal
Retirement System, that was employed with the City of Pharr, Texas for not less than ten (10) years, and reaches
the age of fitty (50), shall be eligible upan retirement to receive continued health coverage at the expense of
the municipality not to exceed $275 per month. A dependent of an eligible retired person under the subsection
shall not receive continued coverage at the expense of the municipality. When a retiree reaches the age of 65,
the municipality will no longer pay for the retiree’s health coverage.

C. A person that becomes employed with the City of Pharr, Texas, after January 1, 2009, shall not be eligible for
any health insurance coverage at the expense of the municipality upon retirement. A dependent of an
employee under this subsection shall not receive health insurance coverage at the expense of the municipality
upon retirement.

Currently, approximately 46 retirees meet these eligibility requirements. The City pays 80% of the number of validated
claims for qualified medical and hospitalization costs incurred after the retiree meets a deductible ranging from 51,000
per individual to 52,000 per family for In-Netwaork coverage. The maximum out-of-pocket costs that can be incurred by
a retiree in the one-year range from $1,500 per individual to $3,000 per family.

B. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accardance with Internal Revenue Code Section
457. The plan, available to all full-time employees at their option, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary
until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to participants until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeahle emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased
with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are the property of the
beneficiary. General inflation is assumed to be 2.50% per year with an investment return and assumption of 6.75% per
year, compounded annually, composed on an assumed 2.5% inflation rate and a 4.25% net real rate of return.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
C. Pension Plan

Pension Plans: The City provides for two pension plans; one Is a defined benefit cash-balance plan administered through
Texas Municipal Retirernent System (TMRS) and one has a special funding situation administered by Texas Emergency
Services Retirement System (TESRS). Both plans are described in detail below. Aggregate amounts for both pension
plans are as follows:

TMRS TESRS TOTAI
Pension liability S 24,034,452 S 780,214 S 24,794,666
Deferred outflows of resources 6,645,302 337,083 6,982,385
Deferred inflows of resources 1,340,511 - 1,340,511
Pension Expense 6,470,751 250,927 6,721,678

1. Plan Description

The City of Pharr, Texas participates as of the 934 plans in the defined benefit cash-balance plan administered by the
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan created by the State of Texas
and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an
agent multiple-employer retirement system for employees of Texas participating cities. The TMRS Act places the general
administration and management of TMRS with a six-member, Governor-appaointed Board of Trustees: however, TMRS
s not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS issues a publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(Annual Report) that can be obtained at tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
2. Benefits Provided

MRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body of the
City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. At retirement, the member’s benefit is calculated
based on the sum of the Member's contributions with interest, the city-financed monetary credits with interest. The
retiring member may select one of seven monthly benefit payment options. Members may also choose to receive a
portion of their benefit as a lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24 or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the total member's contributions and interest.

Description Plan Year 2023 Plan Year 2024
Employee Depasit Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching Ratio (City to Employes) 2ol 2to1

Years Required for Vesting 5 5

Service Retirement Fligibility (Expressed

as Age / Years of Servico) 60/5,0/20 60/5,0/20
\Updated Service Credit 100% ol Repeating 100% of Repeating
Annuity Increase (to Retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI
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IV, OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
2 Pension Plan (Continued)
Employee Cavered by Benefits Terms.

As of the December 31, 2023, valuation and measurement date, the following employees were cavered by the terms
of the benefits:

Description 2023
Inactive emplayees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 300
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving beneflils 417
Active employees 770
Total participants 1,487
Covered Payroll 5 41,286,120

3. Contributions

Member contribution rates in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of the member's total compensation, and the city
matching percentages are either 100%, 150% or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the city. Under the
state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry
Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The city’s contribution rate is based on the liabilities created from the benefit
plan option selected by the city and any changes in benefits or actual experience aver time.

Employees for the City of Pharr were required to contribute 7.00% of their annual compensation during the fiscal year.
The contribution rates for the City of Pharr were 12.10% and 11.71% in calendar years 2023 and 2024, respectively. The

City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2024, were $5,017,057 and were equal to the required
contributions.

4. Net Pension Liability

The city's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL)
used to calculate the Net Pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall Payroll Growth 2.75% per year, adjusted down for population declines, ifany
Investment Rate of Retumn 6,75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including milation
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
C. Pension Plan (Continued)

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on the PUB(10)
maortality tables with 110% of the Public Safety table used for males and 100% of the General Employee table used for
females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees
of Texas mortality tables. Male rates are multiplied by 103% and female rates are multiplied by 105%. The rates for
actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021
to account tor future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees
are used with a 4-year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0%
minimum mortality rate is applied, for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger members
who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale MP-2021 to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor,

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of TMRS over
the four-year period from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2012. They were adopted in 2023 and first used in the
December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs)
are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013.
Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production
of income to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined by best estimate ranges of
expected returns for each major asset class. The long-term expected rate of return is determined by weighting the
expected return for each major asset class by the respective target asset allocation percentage. The target allocation
and best estimate of real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2023 are summarized in the following
table;

Assel Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Global Fquity 35.0% 6.70%
Core Fixed lncome 6.0% 4.70%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0%% 8.00%
Other Public and Private Markets 12.0% 2.00%
Real Estate 12.0% 7.60%
Tedge Funds 5.0% 6.40%,
Private Equity 10.0% 11.60%
Total 100.0%
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
C. Pension Plan (Continued)

4. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that Member and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in
statute. Based on that assumption, the pensian plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive Members, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total
Pensian Liability.

Changes in Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pensian Plan Fiduciary
Liability Net Position
(a) (b)
$127,501,169 $ 100,021,866

Net Pension
Linbility
(a)-(b)

$27,479,303

Balanceat 12/31/2022
Changes for the year:

Service cost 6,230,076 = 6,230,076
Interest B,724,041 - 8,724,041
Change of benefit Lerrms 1,808,026 ¥ 1,808,026
Difference between expected and aclual experience (815,013) (815,013)
Changes of assumptions 7,667 7,667
Contributions - employer - 4,995,619 (4,995,619)
Contribulions - employee - 2,890,028 {2,890,028)
Net investment income - 11,588,162 (11,588,162)
Benelit payments,

including refunds of employee cantributions (6,538,371) (6,358,371) (180,000)
Administrative expense - (73,648) 73,646
Qtherchanges . {515) 515

Net changes 9,416,426 132,041,277 (3,624,851)

Balanceat 12/31/2023
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

4. Net Pension Liabijlity (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Position liability changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what
the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percent-point lower
(5.75%) ar 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decreaze in 1% Increasein
Discounl Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
City's net pension liability s 44,657,205 S 24,034,452 S 7,169,640

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pasitian
Detailed infarmation about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued TMRS
financial repart. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.
5. Pension Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of 56,394,644,

At September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difierences between expecled and actual economic experience
(net of current year amortization) s 199,547 S 727,306
Changes in actuarial assumptions 6,201 76
Difference between projected and aclual investmentl earnings (netl
of current year amortization) 2,487,856 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement dale 3,596,464 -
Total S 6,290,068 S 727,382
ko e ————
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IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

5. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to Pensions
(Continued)

53,596,464 reparted as deferred outflows of resources related to pensians resulting from contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ended September 30,
2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2025 5 504,338
2026 695,028
2027 1,875,156
2028 (1,116,794)
2029 (35,508)
Thereafter -

D. Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Programs
1. Plan Description

Texas Municipal Retirement System (“TMRS”) administers a defined benefit group-term life insurance plan known as
the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (“SDBF”). This is a valuntary program in which participating member cities may
elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their active members, including or not including
retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s
annual salary (calculated based an the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of
death). The death benefit for retirees is considered another post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) and is a fixed amount
of $7,500. As the SDBF covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is an
unfunded OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumulated).

The member city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF
program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year.
The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.

GASB 75 requires employers to recognize the total OPEB liability and the OPEB expense on their financial statements.
The OPEB expense recognized each fiscal year is equal to the change in the total OPEB liahility from the beginning of
the year to the end of the year, adjusted for deferred recognition of certain changes in the liability.

The cily’s SDBF is considered a single-employer unfunded OPEB plan with benefit payments treated as being equal to
the empioyee’s contribution for retirees.
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1. Plan Description (Continued)

Emplayees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2023 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms;

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 238
inactive ermployees entitled to but not yel receiving benefits GG
Active employess 770

Total 1,0/4
—— ]

Contributions

Employaes for the City of Pharr were required to contribute 0.09% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
The contribution rates for the City were 0.27% and 0.24% in calendar year 2023 and 2024, respectively. The City's
contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2024 were $99,540 and were equal to the reguired
contributions.

2. Supplemental Death Benefits (SDBF) Plan Contributions

The city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation.
The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program
is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year;
the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.

Plan/Calendar Total SDR Retires Portion of SDB
Year Cantribution (Rate) Contribution (Rate)
2024 0.724% 0.09%

2023 0.42% 0.08%
2022 0.18% 0.10%
2021 0.18% 0.10%
2020 0.14% 0.03%
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
3. OPEB Liability

The Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total Liability used to
calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date,

Actuarial assumptions: The Total OPEB Liability on December 31, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions.

Inflation 2.50% per year

Overall Payroll Growth 3.60% to 11.85% peryear - including inflation
Discount rate™® 3.77%

Retirea's share of benefit related costs 50

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of December 31, 2023.

Administrative Expenses - All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and accounted for under
reporting requirements under GASB Statement No, 68,

Mortality rates — service retirees — 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables. Male rates are multiplied by
103% and femnale rates are multiplied by 105%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent
Scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence).

Mortality rates — disabled retirees — 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-forward for
rmales and a 3 year set-forward for females. |n addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect
the impairment for younger members who become disabled for males and females, respectively. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence) to account for
future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 3.77%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute,
Based on that assumption, the QPEB plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total OPEB Liability.
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(V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
3. QPEB Liability (Continued)
Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 3.77%. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute.
Based on that assumption, the OPEB plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total OPEB Liability.

Total OPERB Liability:
Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at 12/31/2022 5 1,271,922
Changes lor the year:
Service cost 57,801
Interest 520,014
Change of benefit terms .
Difference between expected and actual experience (14,055)
Changes of assumptions 70,572
Conlributions - emplayer -
Conlributions - employes -
Nel investment income =
Benefit payments, H
including refunds of employee contributions (33,029)
Administrative expense -
Other changes -
Net changes 28,318
Balance al 12/31/2023 5 259,080

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.77%, as well as what
the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.77%)
or 1 percentage point higher (1.77%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increasc in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(2.77%) (3.77%) (4.77%)
City's total OPEB liability 3 1,691,671 5 1,405,225 8 1,181,225
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

3. OPEB Liability (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEBs
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $76,107.

At September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEBs fram the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Cutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expecled and actual economic experience
(nat of current year amorlizalion) 2 - 5 62,382
Changes in actuarial assumplions 281,522 506,747
Difference belween projected and actual investment earnings (nel
of current year amortization) =
Contributions subseguent to the measurement date 73,711
Tatal 5 355,233 $ 569,129

$73,711 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability for the year ended September 30, 2024
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to QPEBs will be recognized in OPLB
expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2025 $ (40,548)
2026 (30,733)
2027 (40,837)
2028 (74,494)
2029 (86,251)
Thereafter (14,744)
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
D. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System

The City participates in a cost-sharing multiple employer pension plan that has a special funding situation. The plan is
administered by TESRS and established and administered by the State to provide pension benefits for emergency
services personnel who serve without significant monetary remuneration. At August 31, 2024, there were 244
contributing fire and/or emergency services department members participating in TESRS. Eligible participants include
volunteer emergency services personnel who are members in good standing of a member department.

On August 31, 2024, the TESRS membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 4,122
Terminated members entitled to, but not yet receiveing benefits 1,806
Aclive participants 3,394

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the TESRS's fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report that includes financial statements and Required Supplementary Information. TESRS issues a publicly
available Annual Financial Report, which includes financial statements, notes, and Reguired Supplementary
Information, which can be obtained at www.tesrs.org. The separately issued actuarial valuations that may be of interest
are also available at the same link.

Benefits Provided

Senate Bill 411, 65th Legislature, Regular Session (1977), created TESRS and established the applicable benefit
arovisions. The 79th Legislature, Regular Session (2005), re-codified the provisions and gave the TESRS Board of
Trustees (the “Board”) authority to establish vesting requirements, contribution levels, benefit formulas, and eligibility
requirements by Board rule. The benefit provisions include retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits.
Members are 50 percent vested after the tenth year of service, with the vesting percentage increasing ten percent for
each of the next five years of service so that a member becaomes 100 percent vested with 15 years of service.

Upon reaching age 55, each vested member may retire and receive a monthly pension equal to his vested percent
multiplied by six times the governing body’s average monthly contribution over the member’s years of qualified service.
For years of service in excess of 15 years, this monthly benefit is increased at the rate of 6.2% compounded annually.
There is no provision for automatic postretirement benefit increases.

On and off-duty death benefits and on-duty disability benefits are dependent on whether or not the member was
engaged in the performance of duties at the time of death or disability. Death benefits include a lump sum amount or
continuing monthly payments to a member's surviving spouse and dependent children.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
D. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (Continued)
Funding Policy

Contributions are made by governing bodies for the participating departments, No contributions are required from the
individuals who are members of TESRS, nar are they allowed. The governing bodies of each participating department
are required to make contributions for each month a member performs emergency services for a department (this
minimum contribution is 536 per member and the department may make a higher monthly contribution for its
members). This is referred to as a Part One contribution, which is the legacy portion of the TESRS contribution that
directly impacts future retiree annuities.

The State is required to contribute an amount necessary to make TESRS “actuarially sound” each year, which may not
exceed one-third of the total of all contributions made by participating governing bodies in a particular year. The Board
rule defining contributions was amended effective July 27, 2014 to add the potential for actuarially determined Part
Two contributions that would be required only if the expected future annual contributions from the State are not
enough with the Part One contributions to provide an adequate contribution arrangement as determined by the most
recent actuarial valuation. This Part Two portion, which is actuarially determined as a percentage of the Part Cne
portion (not to exceed 15 percent), is to be actuarially adjusted near the end of each even-numbered calendar year
based on the maost recent actuarial valuation. Based on the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2023, the Part Two
contributions are not required for an adequate contribution arrangement.

Additional contributions may be made by governing bodies within two years of joining TESRS to grant up to fifteen years
of credit for prior service per member. Prior service must have occurred before the department began participation in
TESRS.

A small subset of participating departments has a different contribution arrangement that is being phased out over
time. In this arrangement, contributions made in addition to the monthly contributions for active members are made
by local governing bodies on a pay-as-you-go basis for members who were pensioners when their respective
departments merged into TESRS. There is no actuarial impact associated with this arrangement as the pay-as-you-go
contributions made by these governing bodies are always equal to benefit payments paid by TESRS.

Ultimately, the contribution policy also depends upon the total return of the System’s assets, which varies from year to
year. Investment policy decisions are established and maintained by the board of trustees. For the year ending August
31, 2024, the money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments was 11.85%. This measurement of the
investment performance is net of investment-related expenses, reflecting the effect of the timing of the contributions
received and the benefits paid during the year.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement Systemn (Continued)

Contributions

The contribution requirement per active emergency services personnel member per month is not actuarially
determined. Rather, the minimum contribution provisions were set by Board rule, and there is no maximum
contribution rate. For the measurement year ending August 31, 2024, total contributions (dues, prior service, and

interest on prier service financing) of $36,540 were paid by the City. The State appropriated $190,395 for the
measurement year ending August 31, 2024 to the plan as a whole.

Actuarial Assumptions

The TPL in the August 31, 2024 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75% peryear

Salary increases N/A

Investment Rate of Return 7.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Municipal Band Rate 3.87%

Discount Rate 5.38%

Martality rates were based on the PubS- 2010 (public safety) below-median income mortality tables for employees and
for retirees, projected for mortality improvement generationally using projection scale MP- 2019, The long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block method in which expected
future net real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed
far each major asset class, These compaonents are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage (currently 4.60%) and by
adding expected inflation (2,75%). In addition, the final 7.25% assumption was selected by rounding down.

The target allocation and expected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:

Asnet Class Target Allocation __Long-Tenn | wpected Real Rate of Return

Fqulties

Large cap domestic 20% 571%

small/mid cap domestic 10% 5 .9RY%

PDeveloped iintermatianal 15% 5.10%

Emerging markels 5% 7.38%
Global infrastrocture 5% E.63%
Renal Fatate 10% 4.50%
Multi asset income L% 3.75%
Fixed Income 30% 1.97%
Cash N 0% 0.00%

Total 100.0%

Weighted Average 4.60%
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IV, OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (Continued)

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.38%. No projection of cash flows was used to
determine the discount rate because the August 31, 2024 actuarial valuation showed that expected contributions would
pay the normal cost and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) in 30 years using the conservative
level dollar amortization method. Because of the 30-year amortization period with the conservative amartization
method and with a lower value of assets, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is expected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pensian plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability.
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the NPL of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 5.38%, as well as what the City's NPL
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (4.38%) or one percentage point
higher (6.38%) than the current rate;

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(4.38%) (5.38%) (6.38%)
City's total OPEB liability 5 1,049,168 5 760,214 5 532,107

Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Qutflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:

At September 30, 2024, the City reported a liability of $760,214 for its proportionate share of TESRS NPL. The amount
recognized by the City as its proportionate share of the NPL, the related State support, and the total portion of the NPL
that was associated with the Citly were as follows:

City's proportionate share of the collective NPL 5760,214
State's proportionate share that is associated with the City™* 190,395
5550,609

i ———

*Calculated using the City’s proportionate share of contributions multiplied by the State’s share of the collective net
pension liability.

At September 30, 2024, the employer’s proportion of the collective NPL was .708 percent, which was a decrease of
0.120 percent from its proportion measured as of September 30, 2023,
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
E. Texas Emergency Services Retirement System (Continued)

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the TPL during the measurement
period.

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the TPL during the measurement period.

Far the measurement year ended August 31, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of $290,926. On- behalf
revenues and expenses were immaterial and not recognized by the City.

At August 31, 2024, the City reported its proportionate share of the TESRS's deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Defarred Deferrad
Cutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Dilferences between expected and aclual economic experience
(nel of curront year amortization) 5 40,823 5
Changes in actuarial assumplions 270,804 -
Difference between projecled and actual investment earnings (net
al current year amortization) 25,456 =
Contributions paid to TESRS subsequent to the measurement dale - s
Taotal 5 337,083 5 2

The contributions paid to TESRS subsequent to the measurement date of the NPL but before the end of the City’s
reporting period will be recognized as a reduction of the NPL in the subsequent fiscal year.

The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows;

Year ended Septermnber 30,

2025 $ 200,162
2026 149,145
2027 (4,545)
2028 (7,679)
Total 337,083
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F. Commitments

1. Grant Programs

The city participates in several federal and state-assisted grant programs. Under the terms of these grants, the City
is subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the City's compliance
with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. |f future program compliance audits
resull in questioned or disallowed costs, reimbursements would be made to the grantor agencies,

2. Litigation
The city is a defendant in various lawsuits, It is the apinion of the City's legal counsel and management that there is
no potential unasserted claim as of September 30, 2024,

3. Construction Commitments

The city has entered various significant construction commitments that are currently underway. As of September
30, 2024, they are as follows:

Original Paid in Paid in Current Balance
Description Commitment Previous Years Year Due
Governme ntal Activities
Admirnistration
UTRGV Nursing School § 2,000,000 $ 1993134 $ - $ 6,866
Tolal Administration 2,000,000 1,993,134 - 6,866
Public Safety
Firc Station 3,000,000 1,264,890 - 3,735,110
Total Public Safety 5,000,000 1,264,890 - 3,735,110
Parks
Maintenance Building 1,000,000 146,281 26,213 827,506
Total Parks 1,000,000 146,281 26,213 827,506
Streets
Pharr Iri-City Pedestrian Walkway 2,461,000 849,356 974,436 637,208
Anaya Road 655,000 329,887 - 325,113
Railroad Crossing Replanking 500,000 457,703 - 2,297
Moore Road to Veterans 1,800,000 845,371 14,209 940,420
Total Streets 5,416,000 2,522,317 988,645 1,905,038
Total Commitments -
Governmental Activitics $ 13,416,000 S 5,926,622 S 1,014,858 S 6,474,520
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Original Paid m Paid in Current Balance
Deseription Commitment Previous Years Year Dugc
Business-Type
Utility
South Detention Pound § 3,882,000 % 568467 § 137,183  § 3,176,350
South Region Interceptor 3,077,700 1,165,366 18,750 1,893,584
Raw Water Reservoir 4,454,600 571,676 9,275 3,873,649
Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 1,700,000 1,437,100 - 262,900
Waste Water Treat Headworks 787,000 404,901 - 382,099
Total Utility 13,901,300 4,147,510 165,208 9,588,582
Bridge
Bridge Expansion 45,000,000 10,084,845 5,951,633 28,963,522
FY 16 DAP 14,141,300 3,711,980 - 10,429,320
Commercial Vehicle Parking Area 14,056,900 1,917,559 - 12,139,341
Total Bridge 73,198,200 15,714,384 5,951,633 51,532,183
Total Commitments -
Business-Type 87,089,500 15,861,894 6,116,841 61,120,765
Total Commitments $ 100,515,500 5 25,783,516 S 7,131699 $ 67,595,285

G. Land available for sale

During FY 2011-2012, the City and PEDC entered into an agreement to buy land for economic development purposes.
As of September 30, 2015, the city has a market value of 58,867,500 in land including demalitions and infrastructure.
On February 2012, the City Commission approved to contribute all land that has been purchased to the PEDC, the
transfer of all land titles was completed as of September 30, 2013, Per GASB standards, land available for sale should
be recorded at a lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). The City obtained appraisals for the land in lanuary 2017
which indicated that the land was worth $1,565,698 |ess than the previous recorded value, a loss of this amount was
reported on the financial statements as a special item during thatyear. The balance of land available for development

is recorded as Land Available for Sale in the PEDRC fund.
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
G. Land available for sale (Continued)

The summary of land available for sale as of September 30, 2024, is shown on the following table:

Added/ Gain/(Loss) on

Description 9/30/2023 (Removed) Adjustment  Appraised Value 9/30/2024
Jackson Development Project § 1,240,000 4 5 $ 5 5 - $ 1,240,000

Praduce Park 420,012 {420,012) - - -

Produce Park 237,109 (237,109) -
Produce Park 255,593 255,993
Old Texan Hotel 1,107,686 1,107,686
Water Reservoir Commercial Partion 750,000 - i - 750,000
Total Land Available For Sale "s 4010800 $ (657,121) § - $ - $ 3,353,679

H. Related Party
None.
J. Tax Abatements

The City of Pharr negotiates loans, grants, property tax abatement agreements, property tax rebates, and sales tax
rebates on an individual basis. These agreements are designed to promote local economic development and
redevelopment within the City, estimate commercial activity, promote job creation, generate additional sales tax,
and enhance the property tax base and economic vitality of the City. This program is authorized under Chapter
380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code.

The City has entered into various agreements that rebate a percentage of property, sales tax, and employment
related reimbursement as well as economic development grants. The reimbursement amounts range per type of

agreement once certain milestones are attained.

Abatements as of Septemnber 30, 2024, are as follows:

Length of
Amount Time

Program Commimment To Pending Obligator Purpose Remaining
Cy of Pharr Vanes TIRZ =1 T Infrastructure Development 37 Years
City cf Pharr Yanes TRZ 22 Infrastructure Development 11 Yzarz
Campero Legacy Properles Varies*® City and PEDC Commércial Development < years
Pharr Town Center Varies** City ef Pharr Commercial Davaiopment 9 years
Carkl ax 5120,000 PEDC Commercial Develocpment 2 Y ears
Top Galf Varies®™* FPEDC wommercial Development 11 Yaars
Te2xas NH Ll anagement Varieg™ " PEDC Commercial Developmeant 7 ¥ ears
Queenstown Park Varigs™** FEDC Commercial Davelopment 10 Years
QCP Capdte Varjes™"" PEDC Commercial Develcpment 7 ¥ ears

TOTAL $120,000

* City and PEDC will reimBurs¢ a pedion of property taxes eachy ear.

** City will reimzurse 23% of Sales Tax Recehed.
REDC will reimburse 0% of total sales tax collected
em DEDOC will reimourse 30%: of propary tasss collected.
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IV, OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
K. Subsequent Events

To report subsequent events, management has considered events occurring through September 30, 2025, the
date the report was availabie to be issued, and the following are considered significant to be disclosed:

e The launch of TeamPharr.Net as of the 12,446 active resident accounts, 50 active small business accounts,
and 8 active enterprise accounts.

e The City is in the process of entering into a contract with the City of San Juan to provide emergency
services.

e The Discretely Presented Component Unit — Jackson Place Apartments — was sold to a third party. This
transaction closed in December 2024,

o The PEDC will issue 55,000,000 in Pharr Economic Development Corporation |l Sales Tax Revenue Note
{2016 Line of Credit Loan Renewal), Series 2024 to be used to promote |ocal economic development and
stimulate business and commercial activity in the City of Pharr, Texas.

L. Changes within the financial reporting entity/error correction

For the current year, the City reported a change in its financial reporting entity. The City previously reported the
Debt Service Fund as non-major governmental funds, In the prior year, that classification was required based on
quantitative factors. However, that threshold was met in the current year, and management concluded that the fund
was significant enough to merit presentation as a major fund for qualitative purposes. Thus, the Debt Service Fund
was reclassified to a major fund in the current year,

The City required balance sheet adjustments and revenue reclassifications related to the previous fiscal year for long-
term debt liabilities and capital asset depreciation. This error understated the fund balances of the General fund,
and Enterprise Fund by, (5318,839) and 53,921,302 respectively, and the net position of governmental activities in
the government-wide statements.

9/30/2023 Change
As Previously Within Finanaial Error 9/30/2023
Reported Reporting Entity Correction . As Restated
Net Position: Governiment-Wide Statements
Governmental Activitics $ 152347674 $ - $ (3,812769) 3 148534905
Business-Type Activities 146,704,793 - 3921302 150,626,093
Toeal Primary Government 299052 467 - 10R.533 299,161.000
Fund Balances: Govertunental Funds
Major Funds
General Fund 5 16,722,608 - (318,83 16,403,768
Economic Development Fund 158319491 - - 15831991
Debt Service Fund . 12900261 - 12900261
Nonmajor Funds 20,737,038 {12.900.26 I_L - 7836777
Totl Governmental Funds $ 53291637 $ - 3 (31B83Y) 5 52972798
Fund Balances: Proprietary Fund
Buzsinoss-Type Activities
Dusiness-Type Activities $ 146704793 - 3.921,302 150,626,005
Toral Governmental Funds § 146704793 5 - $ 3921302 $ 150626005
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CITY OFPHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULEOQFREVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCE-
BUDGETANDACTUAL-GENERALFUND

FOR'THE YEARENDEDSEPTEMBER 30,2024

EXHIBITG-1

Budgeted Amounis

Actual
Amounts
(GAAPBASIS)

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive or

Original Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes § 26794700 $ 26794700 § 25623334 §  (1,171,366)
General Sales and Use Taxes 22,115,700 22,115,700 22,371,291 255,591
Franchise Tax 2,672,900 2,672,900 2,616.057 (36.843)
Other Taxes 299,500 299,500 215,109 (84,391)
Licenses and Permits 1,054,900 1,054,900 1,714,026 639,126
Intergovernmental Revenue and Graunts 536,200 536,200 82,112 (454,088)
Charges for Services 5,474,900 5,474,900 5,431,700 (43,194)
Fines 704,000 704,000 698.839 {3,161)
Investment Earnings 65,000 65,000 63,553 553
Other Revenue 418,000 418,000 1,338,258 920,258
Total Revenues 60,135,800 60,135,800 60,156,285 20,485
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Governiment 22,587,700 24,804,500 18,947,427 5,837.073
Public Safety 35,528,900 35,748,900 31,579,167 4,169,733
Highways and Streets 5,472,600 5,518,700 5,356,715 (38,015
Health and Wellare 347.600 550,100 3,729,898 (3,170.798)
Culture and Recreation 9,525,200 9,655,000 0.924.002 (269,002)
Economic Development 095,000 995,000 2,058.417 (1,063,417)
Debt Service:
Principal on Debt 967.500 967,300 2,462,053 (1.494,553)
Interest on Debt 121,800 121,800 255814 (134,014)
Other Debt Service - . 5,766 (5.766)
Total Expenditures 75,746,300 78,370,500 74,519,259 3,851,241
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (15.610,500)  (18.234700) (14,362,974 3,871,726
Expenditures =
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Bonds 4,790,100 2,446,100 2,446,100 -
Proceeds from Right-to-Use Leases - - 225,076 225,076
Transfers In 12,001,500 12,001,500 16,151,500 4,150,000
Transfers Out (2,274,300) (4,021,600) (9,732,201) (5.710.601)
Total Other Financing Sources (L/ses) 14,517,300 10,426,000 0,090,475 (1,335.525)
Net Change (1,093,200 (7,808,700) (5.272,499) 2,536,201
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 16,722,608 16,722 608 16,722,608 -
Adjustments and Restatements - - (318,839) (318,839)
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) 3 15,629,408 § 8913908 § 11,131270 % 2,217,362
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULEOU CHANGES INNET PENSION LIABILITY ANDRELATED RATIOS
TEXASMUNICIPAL RETIREMENTSYSTEM

FORTHE YEARENDED SEPTEMBLR 30,2024

A. Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)

Changes ol Benelil Terms

DilTerence between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes ol Assunptions

Benelit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions

Nel Change in Totlal Pension Liability
Total Pension Liability - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending
B. Total Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Wet Investment Income
Benefit Payments, Including Reflunds o Employee Contributions

Administrative Expense
Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning,

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending
C. Net Pension Liability

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Tolal Pension
Liability

E. Covered Payroll

I'. Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

FY 2024 FY 2023 Iy 2022

Plan Year 2023 Plan Year2022 Plan Year2021
6,230,076 § 6,149,182 5,640,448
8,724,041 8,028,121 7.442.313
1.808.026 - 12,390,200
(815,013) 37,652 357,274
7.667 - -
(6,358,371) (5,148,741 (4,882 879)
9,596,426 % 9066314 20,947 356
127,501,169 118,434 855 97.487 499
137,097,595 §% 127,501,169 118,434 835
4995619 § 5,312,216 2.907.748
2,890,028 2.974.839 2,725,135
11,588,162 (7,630,390) 11974498
(6.358.371) (5,148,741) (4,882,879)
(73,646) (66,010) (55.192)
(315) 78,770 379
13,041,277 § (4,479.316) 12,669,489
100,021,866 104,501,182 91,831,699
113,063,143 § 100,021,866 104,501,188
24,034,452 % 27.479.303 13,933,667
82.47% 78.45% 88.24%
41,286,120 § 42,496,767 38,872,833
S8.21% 64.606% 35.84%

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20.146 requires that the data in this schedule be presented for the time period cavered by the

measurement date rather than the governmental enlity's current [iscal year.



EXHIBITG-2

'Y 2021 FY 2020 'Y 20119 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015
Plan Year2020 Plan Year2019 Plan Year2018 Plan Year2017 Plan Yeur2016 IMlan Year2013 Plan Year 2014
3,749,532 § 3,734,670 3.533.893 § 3,320,128 § 3,146,078 & 2,746,630 % 2,377,944
6,184.172 5,838,306 5.493.822 5,161,419 4 880,163 4,587,828 4.321.502
(80.063) (204,752) (231,976) 677911 (278,776) 435 455 (63.247)
- (7212,606) - - 2,330,292 -
(#.217477 (3,858,744) (3.726.672) (3,736,864) (3,598,628) (3,484,627) (2,5347.161)
5,630,164 § 5295874 % 3.0609.067 % 5.422,594 % 4,148,837 & 6,6015598 % 4,089,038
91.851,335 86,555,461 21,486,304 76.673.830 72,524,993 05,909,395 61,820,357
97487499 % 91,851,335 § 86,555,371 % 82,096,424 3§ 76,673,830 % 72521993 § 65,909,395
2437328 § 2442368 % 2312486 % 2,174,506 % 1,683.200 % 1.649.708 § 1,570,743
2,170.945 2,167,600 2,021,401 1.903.877 1,800,699 1,702.972 1,578,431
6,454,440 11.294,135 (2,238,218) 9,059,762 4,148,172 90.733 3,296,861
(4,217.477) (3,858.744) (3,726,672) (3.736,864) (3,598.628) (3,484.627) {2,547.1al)
(41,761) (63,813) (43.261) (46,957) (46,837) (53.2635) (34419
(1,629) (1,917) (2,260) (2.380) (2,525} (2.730) (2.830)
6,801,846 % 11,979,629 § (1,676,524) % 9351.944 § 3,084,061 § (99.209) § 3,861,625
83029853 73,050,224 74,726,749 63,374,805 61,390,744 61,189,953 57,628,328
91,831,699 % $5.029.853 § 73,050,225 § 74,726,749 § 65,374,805 % 61,390,744 § 01,489,953
5,655,800 % 6,821,482 8 13,305,146 § 7369675 % 11,299,025 § 11,134,249 § 4,419,442
94.20% 92.57% 84.40% 91.02% B5.26% 84.05% 93.2%%
3,013,497 % 30,363,171 % 18848841 § 27417400 % 25724265 % 24,328,166 % 22.531.464
18.24% 22.47% 46.81% 20.88% 43,92% 45.77% 19.61%



CITY OFPHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULEQF CONTRIBUTIONS
TEXASMUNICIPALRETIREMENTSYSTEM
FORTHEFISCAL YEAR 2024

2024 2023 2022
Actuarially Determined Contribution b 5.017.057 § 5,029,316 § 2.674.066
Contributions in Kelation {o the Actuarially Determined Contributions (5.017.057) (5.029.316) (2,674,066)
e ; s $ - % -8 -
Contribution Deficieney (Excess)
Covered Payroll F 42433200 % 41,179.621 § 38,377,631
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 11.82% 12.21% 6.97%

Mote: (GASDB Codification, Val. 2, P20.146 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the governmental entity's respective
fiscal years as opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending December 31 for the respective fiscal years,



EXHIBITG-3

2021 2020 2019 2018 27 2016 2015
2,777,930 % 2,489,627 § 2,154 807 % 2,134,021 § 2175393 % 2,092,448 § 1,980,325
(2.777.930) (2.489.627) (2,154, 807) (2,134.021) (2,175,593) (2,092,448) (1.980.325)

- % -8 - % - % -8 - % -

35,342,627 % 31.617.123 § 30,363,171 § 28,848,841 % 27,147,409 % 25724265 % 27,723,154

7.86% 7.87% 7.10% T.40% 8.01% 8.13% 7.14%
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 20 years (longest amortization ladder)

Asset Valuation Methad 10 Year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.6% to 11.85% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that vary by age. Last updated for the
2023 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period ending
2022.

Mortality Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables, Male

rates are multiplied by 103% and female rates are multiplied by 105%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale
MP-2021 (with immediate convergence). Pre-retirement: PUB(10
mortality tables, with 110% of the Public Safety table used for males and
the 100% of the General Employee table used for females. The rates are
projected on a fully genrational basis by the most recent 5cale MP-2021
{with immediate convergence),

Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY QF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULEQF CHANGESINTHE TOTAL OPER LIABILITY ANDRELATED RATIOS
TEXASMIUNICIPALRETIREMENTSYSTEM
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDSEPTIIMBER 30,2024

I'Y 2024 FY 2023 'Y 2022
Plan Year2023 Plan Year2022 Plan Year2021

Total OPEB Liability

Servige Cost $ 57.801 § 123,241 § 128,280
Interest on the Tolal OPEDR Liability 52.014 34,838 34,527
Changes of Benefit Terms 3 - -
Difference between Expected and Actual Expericnee (14,033) 6,279 (13.348)
Changes of Assumptions 70,572 (690,389) 60,787
Benefit Payments® {33,029) (412.497) (38.873)
Net Change in Total OPER Liability 133,303 (581.086) 171,373
Total OPLEDB Liability - Beginning 1,271,922 1.853,008 1,681,635
Total OPERB Liability - Ending $ 1,405,225 § 1,271.922 § 1.853,008
Covered Payroll 5 41,286,120 § 42,496,767 § 38,872,833
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 1.40% 2.00% 4.779%,

*The Supplemental Death Benefit Fund is considered to be an unfunded OPER plan under GASB 75. Because of this henefit
payments ate treated as being equal lo the employet’s yearly contributions for retirees.

Nole: GASE Codification. Vol. 2. P52.139 states that the information on this schedule should be determined as of the
meusurement date of the plan.

As required by GASB 735, this schedule will be built prospectively as the informalion becomes available until 10 years of
infurmation is presented.
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EXHIBIT G4

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018
*lan Year2020 PlanYcar2019 PlanYear2018 PlanYear2017

b4 80035 § 60,726 % 63467 % 31,380
39,042 41,724 38,083 36,675

(43,780) (45,154) (32.757) i

231,003 237.034 (84,452) 94,497

£9.304) (9.109) (8.655) (8,144)

297,596 285,221 (24,314) 174,608
1,384,039 1,098,818 1,123,132 773.916

g 1,681,635 % 1,384,039 % 1,098818 § 948,524
g 31,013,497 % 30,363.171 § 28,848,841 § 27,147,409
5.429% 4.56% 3.81% 4.14%



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method N/A

Amaortization Method N/A

Remaining Amartjzation Period N/A

Asset Valuation Method N/A

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.60% to 11.85% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 3.77%

Retirement Age N/A

Mortality Mortality rates - service retirees: 2019 Municipal Retireas of Texas

Mortality Tables. Male rates are multiplied by 103% and female rates are
multiplied by 105%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis
by the most recent Scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence).
Maortality rates - disabled retirees: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas
Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-forward for males and a 3 year set-
forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3% minimum mortality rate
will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who
become disabled for males and females, respectively. The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by the most recent Scale MP-2021
{with immediate convergence) to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the floor.

Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF PHARR, TLEXAS
COMBININGBALANCLESLIFET
NONMAJORGOVERNMENTAL FUNILYS
SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Paving
Asset Parkland &
Hotel/Motel Sharing Dedication Drainage
ASSETS
Cash and Cash liquivalents § 0 B25MS § 1152046 § 145946 § 1,034,866
Accounts Receivable, Net 339,135 s - 137.514
Notes Receivable, Net " - - -
Due from Other Funds : 177,343 . #
Prepaid ltems 4 o ” .
Restricted Cash with Fiscal Agent h = s 5
Restricted Asset - Intergovernmental Receivable _ = 4 2
Total Assets $  L1B4270 % 1329389 % 145946 § 1,172,380
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable g - % 155458 & - % .
Due o Other Funds " . - -
Unearned Revenues - - 4 "
Escrow Accounts = u 4 .
Total Liabilities a 155458 - -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Delerred Revenue - Accounts - - - 107,338
Tolal Deflerred Infllows of Resources - - - 107,538
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance:
Prepaid [tems n - - -
Restricted Fund Balance:
Public Salety - 1,173.931 - -
Tourism 1,184,170 L z 3
Parkland - B 145,946 5
Paving and Drainuge = = E 1,064,842
Eeconomic Development - . - -
(Inassigned Fund Balance & = - a
Total Fund Balunces 1,184,170 1.173.931 145,946 1,064,842
Taotal Liabilitics, Delerred [nflows & FFund Balances $ 1,184,170 & 132938 § 145946 $ 1,172.380
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EXHIBIT H-1(Cont'd)

Total
General Pharr Nonmajor

Community Covid Relief Capital TIRZ TIRZ Housing Special
Development Granis Fund Improvements No. 1 No. 2 Finance Corp  Revenue Funds
$ 30409 % - 5 - b - § 4134956 $ 3464357 § (10,579) % 11.287.236
143 410 - - 286,922 1,390,697 689,604 - 3.007.282
37,289 - - - - - - 57.289
« - - - - - - 177,343
= - 13,000 - £ - - 10,000
- - 5.840.771 304.957 - - - 6,143,728
- 433,363 - - - - - 433,363

5 741,108 § 433365 § 5850771 % 01879 § 5525653 5 4,154,161 % (10,579) § 21,118.243

§ 4664 $ 4068 § 1882652 § 143497 § -8 - % -5 2280339
05475 159.026 - - : 538,061 877,467 1,670,029

. 279,867 3,710.298 - i s . 3,990,165

- - 481,678 1,079,280 . § : 1,560,958

T 190,139 442,961 6,074,628 1,222,777 ‘ 538,061 §77.467 9,501,491
57,754 ; 3 = 1,390,697 689,604 . 2,245,593
57,754 2 - 4 1,390,697 689,604 . 2,245,593

2 . 10,000 : . L b 10,000

. . . - - . ; 1,173,931

. a ’ . . - . 1184,170

. ; ; ; . . . 145,946

i . : : . . ; 1,064,842

493215 - - : 4,134,956 2,926,496 3 7,554,667

: (9.596) (233.857) (630,898) . . (888.046)  (1,762397)

493215 (9.396) (223.857) (630,808) 4,134,956 2,926,496 (888,046) 9,371,159

b 741,108 § 433365 § 3850771 % 501879 & 5525653 % 4154161 § (10,579) § 21118243
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LEXEUBIT -1
CITY QOF PHARR, TIEXASR
COMBININGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNIXS
SEPTEMBLER 30,2024

Total
Debt Service Nonmajor
Prior Year Governmental
Non-Major Fd Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Lquivalents % - §F 11287236
Accounts Receivable, Net - 3,007.282
Notes Receivable, Net - 57.280
Due from Other Funds - 177,343
Prepaid ltems - 10,000
Restricted Cash with Fiscal Agent - 6,145.728
Restricted Asset - Intergovernmental Receivable - 433 365
Total Asscls b - $ 21118243
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ - $ 2280339
Due to Other Funds - 1,670,029
[Incarned Revenues = 3,990,165
Escrow Accounts = 1,560,958
Tolal Liabilitics - 9,501,491
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue - Accounts - 2,243,593
Total Delerred Inflows ol Resourees - 2245593
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable Fund Balance:
Prepaid [tems - 10,000
Restricted Fund Balance:
Public Safety - 1,173,931
Tourism i 1,184,170
Parkland - 145,946
PPaving and Drainage - 1.064,842
lieonomic Development - 7.554.667
Unassigned IF'und Balance - (1.762,397)
‘I'otal I'und Balances - 9371154
Total Liabilities. Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances (S - % 21118243
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBININGSTATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES -NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHEYEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2024

Paving
Asset Parkland &
Hotel/Matel Sharing Dedication Drainage
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes 8 - 5 - % -5 f
Other Taxcs 1,114,684 - = =
Intergovernmental Revenuc and Grants - 1.013.616 - -
Charges for Services - Other - - 105,694 1,160,140
Investment Farnings - 13,449 1,493 14972
Other Revenue 10,802 7,343 - -
‘T'otal Revenues 1,125,486 1,034,608 107,587 175,112
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government o & w -
Public Safety - 422139 - -
Highways and Streets - - - 531,331
Culture and Recreation - - - -
[Debt Service:
Principal on Debt - - - -
Inierest on Debl - - - -
Totul Expenditures - 422,139 - 51,331
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver ([nder) 1,125 486 612,469 107,587 1,123,781
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USLES):
Transfers In = 5 3 .
Translers Out (600,000) - B (1.045,500)
Total Other Financing Sources (1/ses) (600,000) - - (1.045,500)
Nel Change in Fund Balance 325,486 612469 107.587 78281
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) 658,684 561.462 38,359 986,561
Adjustments and Restatements - £ & -
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) $ 1184170 § 1173931 % 145,946 % 1,064,842




EXHIBIT H-2 (Cont'd)

Total
General Phurr Nonmajot

Comenunity Covid Reliel Cupitul TIRZ TIRZ Housing Special
Development Grants Fund Improvements No. 1 No. 2 Finance Corp  Revenue Funds
§ - - 5 - ¥ - % 704200 % 481,100 $ - % 1185300
% o 2 a . - - 1,114,684
1,159,816 3.029.564 7,170,010 555,802 - . - 12,928 808
- - - - - - - 1,263,834
9775 " - - 73,033 62,708 2 175,832
3 - - A - - - 18,348
1,169.594 3,029,564 7,170,010 555,802 777.233 343,808 2 16,688,806
770,959 - 7,393,867 5.034 15,000 13,000 10,700 £.210,360
18,780 3,029,564 - = - - = 3.470,483
- - - 1,881,494 = - - 1,932,825
- - - 4,976,711 = - - 4,976,711
295,000 . - 1,167,708 4 - - 1,462,708
73,224 - - 40,545 a - - 113,769
1,157,963 3.029,564 7,393,867 8,071,492 15,000 135,000 10,700 20,167,056
11,631 - (223,857) (7,515,690} 762233 528,808 (10.698) (3,478250)
. - “ 6,658,132 = - - 6,658,132
} - “ 2 - - . (1,645,500)
4 - - 6,658,132 ] - ® 5,012,632
11,631 = (223.857) (857.558) 762,233 528,808 (10,698) 1,534,382
481,584 (9.596) - 226,660) 3,372,723 2,397,688 (877.348) 7.836.777
b 493215 (9,596) § (223857) & (630,898) § 4134956 § 2926496 §  (888,046) § 9371159
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EXUIBITIL-2
CITY OF PHARR, IEXAS
COMRBININGSTATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENINTURESAND CHANGES IN
FUNDBALANCES -NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTALFUNDS
FORTHLE YEAR ENDEDSLEPTEMBER 30,2024

Tuotal
Debt Service MNonmajor
Prior Year Governmenlal
Non-Major Fd Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Propetty laxes b - §  LIB5300
Other Taxes - 1,114,684
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants - 12,928,808
Charges for Services - QOther - 1,265.834
Investment Earnings - 175,832
Other Revenue - 18,348
Total Revenues 3 16,688,806
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government - 8.210,560
Public Sality - 3,470,483
Highways and Streets 5 1,932,825
Culture and Recrealion - 4,976,711
Debt Service:
Prineipal on Debl - 1,462,708
[nterest on Debt - 113,769
Tatal Expenditures 5 20,167,036
Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues Over (Under) i (34782500
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Trans{ers In - 6,658,132
Transfers Oul - (1,643,500)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) s 5,012,632
Net Change in Fund Balance 5 1,534,382
IFund Balance - October | {Beginning) 12,900,261 20,737,038
Adjustments and Restatementy (12,900261) (12,900.261)
Iund Balance - September 30 (Ending) % - %5 9371159
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBININGSTATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNALSERVICE FUNDS

SEPFTEMBER 30,2024
City Health Total
Curage Insurance Intcrnal
Tund Fund Service Funds
ARSETS
Cutrent Assets:
Cash and Cash EBauivalents 155,543 § (532.471) § {376.92&)
Tnventories 13.690 - 13.690
Total Current Assels 169,233 (532,471) {363,238)
Noncurrenl Assets:
Capital Assets:
Buildings. Net 278.217 - 278217
Total Noncurrent Assels 278,217 - 278,217
Total Asscls 447450 (532.471) (B5.021)
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2.015 - 2.013
Compensated Abscnces Payable 41.010 - 41.010
Due to Other Funds 3013 - 50158
Unearned Revenues . §1.493 81.493
‘I'otal Liabilitics 48.040 81,493 129,533
NET POSITION
Net [nvestment in Capital Assets and Lease Asscls 278.217 = 278.217
Unrestricted 121.193 (613.961) (492.771%
‘Total Net Position 399,410 § (613,964) § (214,554)
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CITY OF PIHARR, TEXAS sl
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2024

City [lealth Total
Garage Insurance Internal
Fund Fund Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
(Garage [cpairs b3 1100664 § - % 1,100,664
Claims = 6,385,478 6,385,478
Total (perating Revenucs 1,100,664 6,385,178 7.486,142
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Persannel Services 230,645 - 230,643
Contractuul Services 790,488 - 790,488
Depreciation 14,467 - 14,467
SelCInsurance Claims - 6,896,680 6,896,686
Tolal Operating Expenses 1,035,600 0,896,686 7,932,286
Income (Loss) Before Transiers 63,064 (511,208) (446,144)
Nonoperating Transfirs In Z 362 162
Change in Net Position 63.064 (510.846) {445,782)
l'otal Net Position - Oclober 1 {Beginning) 334,346 (103,118) 231,228
Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) b 390410 § (613.964) 3§ (214.554)
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EXHIBITL-3
CITY OF PHARR, TIEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNALSERVICEFUINDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDSEPTEMBER 30,2024

City Health Total
Garage [nsucance Internal
Fund Fund Service Funds
Cash Flows [rom Operating Activitics:
Cush Received from User Charpes § 1.100.0064 $ 6,385478 5 7486042
Cush Payments for Insurance Claims - (6.920.430) (6,920,450)
Cush Payments for Other Operating Expenses (1.001,337) - (1,001,337
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Aclivities
4 gl 99,327 (534,972) (435.645)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Operating Transfer In - 362 362
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Bquivalents 99 327 (334,610} (435,283)
Cash and Cash Equivalenis al Beginning of the Perind 56,216 2,139 58,355
(Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Period b 155,543 5 (532471 §  (376,928)
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activilics:
Operating Income {Loss) b 65,064 £ (511,208) $  (446,144)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating [ncome
to Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities:
Deptreciation 14,467 - 14,467
Effect of Incrcases and Decreases in Current
Asgsets and Liabilitics:

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables - (23,764) (23,764)
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 27,711 - 27,711
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (7.915) “ (7,913)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities b3 99,327 ¥ (334.972) §  (435.643)
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411

Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Pharr,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise City of Pharr, Texas’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 30, 2025.

Internal Control over Finaneial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Pharr, Texas’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the [irst paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to me
material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Pharr, Texas’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Pharr's Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of Pharr’s response to
the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The
City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kuul ﬁ’#ﬁdﬁd’ﬂ & ﬁﬂﬁ/ﬂﬂ#y, /067

Corpus Christi, Texas
September 30, 2025
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411

Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE AND THE STATE OF TEXAS GRANT MANAGEMENT STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Commission
City of Pharr, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited City of Pharr, Texas' compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to
audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and in the State of Texas Grant Management Standards that could have a
direct and material effect on each of City of Pharr, Texas’ major federal and state programs for the year ended September
30, 2024. City of Pharr, Texas’ major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, City of Pharr, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year
ended September 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit in compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General o the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance); and the State of Texas Gramt Management Standards (“TxGMS”). Qur responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance and the TxGMS are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report,

We are required to be independent of City of Pharr, Texas and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance with each major federal and state program. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of City of Pharr, Texas’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
lo abave,
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred (o above and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of effective control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and
provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Pharr, Texas’s federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Pharr, Texas’s
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Awditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance and the TxGMS will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forger, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user
of the report on compliance about City of Pharr, Texas's compliance with the requirements of each major federal and
state program as a whole.

Tn performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance and the TxGMS, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

s Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding City of Pharr, Texas’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

o  Obtain an understanding of City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Pharr, Texas’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance
that we identifiad during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 1o identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the
TxGMS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Roal Hurnandsp = Campany, ZC7

Corpus Christi, Texas
September 30, 2025
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL EAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

A Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
were not considered material weakness? Yes

Material noncompliance to financial
statements noted? No

2. Federal/State Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that
were not considered to be material weaknesses? No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
Najor programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2 1.8, Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200.516(a) or 'Texas Grant Management Standards? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
21.019 Coronavirus Reliet Fund
State N/A Methodist Healthcare Ministries of South Texas, Inc.
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Federal/State
Type A and Type B programs; $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

SECTION | - FINANGIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Reference Number

Criteria:

Condition Found:

Context:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

2024-001 Monthly Account Analysis and Year-End Closing

Controls relative to timely close-out of financial statements at year-end
should be in place to provide management with the necessary financial
information to make appropriate decisions, and to ensure compliance with
federal, state and local reporting deadlines.

A significant amount of time lapsed after year-end, before the financial
statements were closed-out. The general ledger required many audit
adjustments and reclassifications to both current and prior period
adjustments. Preparation of the year-end adjusting jeurnal entries, capital
asset schedules, long-term debt schedules, accounts receivables for all
funds, accounts payable reconciliations, procurement, cash
reconciliations, P-Cards, recarding of receipts, collections, review of stale
outstanding checks, inventory, and reconciliation of several significant
areas were not timely. The City overspent in several budgeted expenditure
functions within the year resulting in an continuing operating loss for the
General Fund and an current year operating loss for the PEDC.

These conditions were noted in performing our standard audit
procedures.

Management assessments and financial decisions, and internal and
external financial reporting may be inaccurate because of inaccurate
planning and improperly maintained general ledgers.

Timely financial statements were not available during the year and at year-
end. The City provided us with incorrect year-end trial balances multiple
times and this further delayed the audit.

The City should review its internal controls relating to P-Cards, financial
statement accounting and reporting to ensure that timely financial
statements are prepared and available for management use, as well as for
audit purposes.

Repeat Finding frormn Prior Year(s): Yes

Views of Responsible Officials:

See management's corrective action plan.

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

NONE
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Reference Number

Criteria:

Condition Found:

Context:

Lffect:

Recommendation:

Status of Prior Year Finding:

2023-001 Monthly Account Analysis and Year-End Closing

Controls relative to timely close-out of financial statements at year-end should be
in place to provide managemen! with the necessary financial information Lo make
appropriate decisions, and Lo ensure compliance with federal, slale and local
reporting deadlines,

A significant amount of time lapsed after year-end, before the financial
statements were closed-out.  The general ladger reguired many  audit
adjustments and reclassifications to both current and prior period adjuslments.
Preparation of the year-ond adjusting journal entrics, capital asset schedules,
long-term debt schedules, accounts receivables for all funds, accounts payable
reconciliations, procurement, cash reconciliations, P-Cards, recording of receipts,
rallections, review of stale oulstanding checks, inventory, and reconciliatian of
several significant arcas were not Limely. The City overspent in several budgeted
expenditure functions within the year resulting in an continuing operating loss for
the General Fund and an current year operating loss for the PEDC.

These canditions were noted in performing our standard audit procedures.
Management assessments and financial decisions, and inlernal and external
financial reporting may be inaccurate because of inaccurate planning and
improperly maintained general ledgers.

limely financial statements were not available during the year and at year-end.
I'he Cily provided us with incorrect year end trial balances multiple times and this
further delayed the audit.

The City should review its internal controls relating to financial statement
accounting and reporting to ensure Lhal timely financial statemenls are prepared

and available for management use, as well as for audit purposes.

See current year finding 2024-001.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Corrective Action for Financial Statement Findings

Reference Number 2024-001  Monthly Account Analysis and Year — End Closing

Corrective Action: The City of Pharr’s Finance Department and City Management will review internal controls
related to this area to ensure timely financial statements are prepared and available for management, use, as well
as for audit purposes.

Name of contact person: Jamison Merrick —Finance Director
Contact: Jamison.merrick@pharr-tx.gov
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Federal
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGH CFDA Pass-Thraugh Entity Federal
GRANTOR/ PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE Number identlfying Number Expenditures
U.5 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Pussed through the Office of the Governor - Criminal Justice Division
Human Trafficking Liaison Grant 16.575 15POVC-21GG-00600-A55] 23,111
Crime Victims Assistance Program 16.575% 2021-C5-21027 86,739
BulletProof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 30,000
Edward Byrne Memarial Juslice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 15PBJA-22-GG-02H06-JAGK 21,816
Tropical Texas Behavioral Health Grant 16.745  15PBJA-21-GG-04291-MENT 133,565
Public 3afety Partnarship and Community Policing Grants 16.710 15]COPS21GG03396UHPX 542,235
Totu) Passed through the Office of the Governar - Criminal Justice Division 837,466
Qther 115, Department of Justice
Equitable Sharing Program - US Marshal Service (50} 16.922 1125A1599 80,721
Tatal Other U.5. Department af lustice 80,721
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 918,186
U.5, DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through the Office of the Governor-Homeland Security Grants Division
Operation Stonegaren Grant Program 97.067 EMW-2019-55-00034-501 302,487
latal Passed through the Qffice of the Governor Homeland Secirity Grants Divisian 302,487

Possed through the Office of the Governor-Homeland Security Grants Division-Federal Emergency Monagement Agency

staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 2019 97.083 EMW-2019-FF-01465 548,438
Total Passed through the Office of the Governar-Homeland Security Grants Division Federal Emergancy Manogement Agency 548,438
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 850,925

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass thraugh the Texas Oepurtment of Transpartation

Highway Planning and Construction 70.205 555,802
STEP - Commercial Maotor Vehicle (CMV) 20600  2023-PharrPD-5-CMV-00043 11,962
S1EF - Comprehensive Grant 20.600  2023-PharrPD-5-1YG-00137 11,959
STEP - Impaired Driving Moblization {IDM} 20.614 2023 -PharrPD-IDM-0023 12,981
Click it or Ticket 20.616 2023-PharrPD-CIOt-00053 4,756
Totol Passed through the Texas Deportment of [ransparotion 597,460
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 597,460

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Passed through the Texas Division of Emeérgency Mondgement

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 746001875 7,170,010
Total Passed through the Texas Division of Emergency Manaogement 7,170,010
TOTAL U.5. DEFARTMENT OF TREASLURY 7,170,010

U.5. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIN AGENCY
Passed through the Texas Water Developrnent Buord

Clean Water State Revolving Fund 66.468 1,250
Total Passed through the Texas Waoter Development Board 1,250
TOTAL U.5. ENVIRONMETNAL PROTECTION AGENCY 1,250

1.5 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture

Community Development Block Grant - CDBG FY 18/19 14.218 B-15 MC-48-0507 91,978
Community Development Block Grant - CRBG FY 18/20 14,218 B-20-MC-48-050/ 87,433
Communily Develepment Block Grant - CORG FY 20/21 14,218 #-21-MC-4B-0507 65,148
Communily Development Bleck Grant - COBG FY 21/22 14,218 B-22-MC-48-0507 136,344
Community Development Block Grant - CDBG FY 22/23 14.218 B-23-MC-4B-0507 443,553
Community Development Block Grant - CDBG FY 23/24 14.218 B-24-MC-48-0507 335,361
Total Passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture 1,159,816
TOTAL U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSINIG AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 1,159,816

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 10,697,647

———
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2029

STATE GRANTOR/ Federal
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA Poss-Through Entity State
PROGRAM ar CLUSTER TITLE Number Identifying Number Expenditures
TEXAS OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
Passed thraugh Office of the Governor - Homeland Security Grant Division
Local Border Sacurity Program (LBSP) N/A 2023-BL-51-0016 178,638
Total Passed through Qffice af the Gavernor - Homeland Security Grant Division 178,638
Passed through Qffice of the Attorney Genergl-Grants Division
Victim Corrdinator & Liaisan Grant - (VCLG) N/A C-00039 36,667
Total Passed through Office of the Attarney General - Grants Division - 36,667
TOTAL TEXAS OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 215,305
METHODIST HEALTHCARE MINISTRIES
Direcl Program
Melhodist Healthcare Ministries Grant N/A 4 951,754
TOTAL METHODIST HEALTHCARE MINISTRIES 951,754
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS S 1,167,059

109

eseTE—————



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2024

Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying Schedule of Fxpenditures of Federal and State Awards (Schedule) presents the activity of all
the federal and state award activity of the City of Pharr, Texas, under programs of the federal government and the
State of Texas for the year ended September 30, 2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the Texas Grant Monagement
Standards, The City’s reporting entity is defined in Note |.B. to the City’s basic financial statements, All federal
and State awards received directly from Federal and State agencies and federal and state awards passed through
state agencies are included on the Schedule. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position or changes in net position
of City of Pharr, Texas.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The federal and state grant funds were accounted for in the Grant Fund, a governmental fund type, and in an
enterprise fund. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The governmental fund types are accounted for using a current financial resources
measurement focus. With the governmental fund type measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets,

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the governmental fund types. This basis of accounting
recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measureable
and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measureable,
except for certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the obligations
are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business or where the governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs
incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are accounted for on
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Federal and State grant funds are generally considered earned to the extent of expenditures made under the
provisions of the grant, and accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues
until earned.

Indirect Cost Rate:
The City has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Relationship to Federal Financial Status Reports:

Amounts reported on the Schedule may not agree with the amounts reported in the related Federal financial
status reports filed with grantor agencies, because of the effect of accruals made in the Schedule.
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